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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
1 75 4 B

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

F A=
For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1t—-HILEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
= Lo L —EThE —TTNF —TTLE —TERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Nasin ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR
Turnover e 654,315 396,229 424,072 645,191 415,790
Profit before taxation B 3 B g A 43,056 21,567 38,570 86,285 13,157
Income tax FT 15 5% (2,141) = = = —
Profit for the year F N F) 40,915 21,567 38,570 86,285 13,157

Profit attributable to: FE Al A
Equity Shareholders ARRIERFB A

of the Company 21,567 33,445 58,445 6,310
Non-controlling Interests 3k 1% % B% 5 1 %5 — 5,125 27,840 6,847
21,567 38,570 86,285 13,157

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
As at 31 December
+=A=+-A
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
= ks —ETAEFE —TENF —FTTLE —ZTTA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’O(p RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARETT ARBTIT AR®TT ARBTI
Current assets MENEE 392,820 316,360 228,956 212,276 196,316
Non-current assets FRBEE 832,128 869,579 901,323 932,753 1,012,958
Current liabilities mEAE 460,598 354,306 348,619 330,472 363,454
Non-current liabilities FREBEE 272,139 370,744 328,884 391,741 499,350
Net assets EEFE 492,211 460,889 452,776 422,816 346,470
Total equity attributable to A2 RIS
equity shareholders FEA
of the Company JE(h s 492,211 460,889 361,510 283,546 212,223
Non-controlling Interests ~ JEFE AR AR SR 25 - - 91,266 139,270 134,247
Total equity ArERS 492,211 460,889 452,776 422,816 346,470
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£ F RS

The operation of the Group was stable in 2010. Despite
the undersupply of natural gas at the end of 2009 and
the first quarter of 2010, as well as the loss recorded
in the results of the first quarter in 2010, the Group
achieved substantial growth in profits as compared
with last year through its endeavours to overcome the
challenges.

As of the year ended 31 December 2010, the turnover
of the Group was approximately RMB654,315,000,
representing an increase of 65.14% as compared with
2009. The profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company were approximately RMB40,915,000,
representing an increase of 89.71% as compared with
2009.

In the first quarter of 2010, the Group recorded a loss
due to the insufficient supply of natural gas. However,
the supply of natural gas from the West-East Gas
Pipeline has returned to normal levels since the second
quarter of 2010, and the new Sichuan pipeline provided
additional gas supplies. The Group, through its efforts,
obtained an adequate supply of natural gas and power
generation increased substantially as compared with last
year. Despite the increase of RMB0.33/m?® in natural gas
price from 15 July 2010 (of which 30% was borne by
natural gas power plants) that brought certain adverse
effects to the results of the Group, the Group maintained
a remarkable growth in profit in 2010 as compared with
last year.

Looking forward, since climatic changes and the
development of low carbon economies will be under
global spotlight, the clean energy industry will be one of
the industries with the strongest development potential.
The 12th Five Year Plan of China attached more
importance to energy saving and emission reduction
and encouraged the use of clean energy. As one of
the clean energy providers in Zhejiang Province, the
Group will benefit from the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) government’s favourable policies promoting
environmentally friendly energy.

The Chinese economy continues to grow steadily. In
2010, power consumption volume in China increased
more rapidly than last year and the demand for power is
expected to increase at quick pace in 2011.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRERE

As a clean, efficient and high quality source of energy,
natural gas is used worldwide. Natural gas is also
important to the adjustment of overall energy supply
structure, environmental protection and industrial
development in Zhejiang Province. Therefore, natural
gas is widely introduced in Zhejiang Province. Natural
gas power plants play an essential role in energy
preservation, emission reduction and peak-load
regulation of the power grid. The outlook of natural gas
power generation is promising.

In order to grasp the extensive opportunities in the
clean energy market in China, the Group is well placed
to further increase its market share in the clean energy
supply industry in China by developing and investing
in new projects and conducting research in developing
other sources of energy in addition to natural gas.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the
dedication of all directors, the management team and
staff, as well as for the support of all our shareholders
and business partners for their contribution to the
operating results of the Group in the previous year.
The Group will continue to strengthen the operation
and development of its clean energy business so as to
achieve outstanding results and create significant returns
for its shareholders.

Ding Guang Ping
Chairman, Board of Directors

Zhejiang Province, China, 25 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W N DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Installed Capacity

The Group has three wholly-owned gas-fired power
plants, namely Zhejiang De-Neng Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd* (MIERERAREETHERARF)
(“De-Neng Power Plant”), Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd* (fn/MIEIAE
KAAREEFGR AT (formerly known as Hangzhou
Blue Sky Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd* (L)
ERKAREEAMR AR (“Blue Sky Power Plant”) and
Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power Generation
Co., Ltd* (MIIIAREBERARBEEFRAF) (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”). As at 31 December 2010, the aggregate
installed capacity and attributable installed capacity
of the power plants of the Group was approximately
299MW.

Production Volume

The production volume for the year ended 31
December 2010 was 1,021,772Mwh, representing an
increase of 50.28% as compared with last year (2009:
679,891Mwh).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BB & am & o AT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Production Volume (Continued)

The supply of natural gas in Zhejiang has increased
significantly since April 2010 when compared with that in
November and December in 2009, and the first quarter
of 2010. The Group also managed to obtain adequate
natural gas for the rest of 2010. Having benefited from
government policies encouraging the use of clean
energy, power generation improved significantly. As
a result, power generation in 2010 saw a remarkable
growth.

Natural Gas Supply

The total natural gas supply for the year ended 31
December 2010 was 239.59 million m8, representing an
increase of 49.90% as compared with last year (2009:
159.83 million m?).

Cost of Fuel

Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group’s
power plants. The natural gas price is determined by the
Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province. The price of natural
gas (inclusive of VAT) has been increased by RMBO0.14/
m? from RMB1.94/m?® to RMB2.08/m? since 20 February
2010, and has been further increased by RMB0.33/m? to
RMB2.41/m?2 since 15 July 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W N DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province after reasonably taking into account
the types of fuel, cost structure and operating profit
of similar power plants within the provincial grid. The
on-grid tariff (inclusive of VAT) has been increased by
RMBO0.035/kwh from RMBO0.705/kwh to RMBO0.74/
kwh since 20 February 2010, which was in line with the
increase of natural gas price. The on-grid tariff (inclusive
of VAT) has been further increased by RMBO0.06/kwh to
RMBO0.80/kwh since 15 July 2010.

The adjustment of on-grid tariff was reasonably
determined in line with the increment of natural gas
price in terms of scale and time. However, with effect
from 15 July 2010, the natural gas price increased by
RMBO0.33/m3, of which 30% of the increment was borne
by natural gas power plants and the remaining 70%
of the increment was covered by the increase of on-
grid tariff. Therefore, the Group was unable to pass all
increased cost onto our users. The Board of Directors
had promptly made relevant announcements on 15 July
2010 and 20 July 2010.

Since the Group was unable to pass the entire increase
in natural gas price to users, the percentage of fuel
cost to turnover has increased. For the year ended 31
December 2010, the fuel cost accounted for 73.45%
of the turnover, representing an increase of 5.14
percentage points.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 was approximately RMB654,315,000
(2009: RMB396,229,000), representing an increase of
65.14% as compared with last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEB W&

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
approximately RMB40,915,000 (2009: RMB21,567,000),
representing an increase of 89.71% as compared with
2009. Earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.10 (2009:
RMBO0.06). An announcement on positive profit alert was
issued by the Board of Directors on 7 December 2010.

Turnover

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to approximately RMB654,315,000,
representing an increase of 65.14% as compared with
RMB396,229,000 last year. The increase in turnover
was primarily due to substantial increase in production
volume as compared with last year.

Operating Costs

In 2010, the operating costs of the Group was
approximately RMB572,483,000, representing an
increase of approximately 68.56% as compared with
RMB339,635,000 in 2009. The rise in operating costs
was in line with the increase in turnover.

Fuel Consumption

The cost of fuel consumption remains the most
significant portion of the Group’s operating expenses
and accounted for approximately 83.95% of the
operating costs in 2010, which is slightly increased
from last year. In 2010, the cost of fuel consumption
of the Group was approximately RMB480,600,000,
representing an increase of approximately 77.57% as
compared with RMB270,652,000 in 2009. The increase
in cost of fuel consumption was due to the increase in
power generation and natural gas price.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization consist of charges on
depreciation of the property, plant and equipment
and the amortization of the land use rights. Major
generator equipment of the Group’s power plants were
depreciated at a rate with reference to the production
hours operated. Depreciation and amortization for
the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately RMB47,661,000 (2009: RMB37,558,000).
The increase in depreciation and amortization during
2010 was primarily due to increased production hours
operated by our major power generators.

Repairs and Maintenance

The repairs and maintenance costs for the year ended
31 December 2010 were approximately RMB2,261,000
(2009: RMB2,014,000).

Staff Costs

Staff costs mainly comprise of salaries paid to
employees, contributions to pension funds, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing fund
paid to relevant government authorities. The staff costs
for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately RMB21,658,000 (2009: RMB15,388,000),
representing an increase of 40.75% as compared with
2009. The increase in staff costs was due to various
reasons. Salaries of front line technicians and general
staff were increased in the third quarter of 2009 to
improve their relatively low level of salaries in general
in the past, so as to maintain a strong workforce. The
increase in salary had its full effect in 2010. More staff
was employed to further expand the Group’s talent
reserve to satisfy the Group’s needs after the listing of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and new business
projects. Increase in staff costs also reflects the payment
of bonus to outstanding staff with reference to the
Group’s annual result and individual staff appraisal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEENRE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses comprise mainly of professional
service fees, utilities, insurance and testing fees. The
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to approximately RMB16,457,000
(2009: RMB11,787,000), representing a growth of
39.62% as compared with last year. The growth was
mainly due to a substantial increase in professional
service fees as compared with last year since the year of
2010 was the first complete financial year after the listing
of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs mainly comprise of the net balance
of bank interest income and interest expense on bank
and other borrowings. For the year ended 31 December
2010, net finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB40,130,000 (2009: RMB37,261,000), representing
an increase of 7.70% as compared with last year. The
increase in net finance costs was due to the increase in
interest expenses on bank borrowings as the People’s
Bank of China raised the benchmark interest rates of
loans denominated in Renminbi from financial institutions
twice since October 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other Net Income

Other net income refers to the government grants
from local government authorities which are offered as
incentives for the Group’s development in the clean
energy power industry and our contributions to the
local economy. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
other net income of approximately RMB1,354,000
(2009: RMB2,234,000) was mainly comprised of
local government grants received by power plants of
the Group that were awarded with the “Excellence
Contribution for Production in Development Area” (5%
&= B EMEREE) prize and granted with the “Subsidy
for Environmental Protection Campaign” (3R{R7E4% 258
B B) as the result of the Group’s contribution to the
local economy. Other net income decreased by 39.39%
as compared with the corresponding period last year
due to the fact that De-Neng Power Plant received the
VAT subsidy of approximately RMB2,030,000 in 2009,
which was the last year in which De-Neng Power Plant
was entitled to the VAT subsidy. No such subsidy was
granted to De-Neng Power Plant in 2010. Therefore,
other net income decreased as compared with last year.

Income Tax

All our power plants are entitled to full exemption from
PRC income tax for the first two years commencing from
the first profitable year of operation and a 50% reduction
of the applicable PRC income tax rates for the following
three years. According to the relevant regulations by
the State Administration of Taxation, the power plants
of the Group, being the foreign-owned enterprises
which purchased PRC-manufactured equipment, are
entitled to a corporate income tax credit of up to 40%
of the respective purchase amount. No provision of
PRC income tax was provided for the year ended 31
December 2010 because all our power plants were
entitled to such corporate income tax credit granted
by the State Tax Bureau of the respective local county.
No provision of income tax was made for the members
of the Group outside of the PRC as the Group had no
assessable profits generated outside the PRC.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, foreign investors are
subject to an applicable withholding tax rate of 5% in
respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profits earned after 1 January
2008. The applicable tax rate of the Group is 5%. As
at 31 December 2010, RMB2,141,000 of deferred tax
liabilities were recognized.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

For the vyear ended 31 December 2010, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB40,915,000 (2009: RMB21,567,000),
which is an increase of RMB19,348,000, representing
an increase of approximately 89.71%, as compared with
last year.

The significant increase in profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was mainly attributable to
the significant growth of natural gas supply in Zhejiang
from April 2010 as compared with November and
December of 2009 and the first quarter of 2010. The
Group also managed to obtain adequate natural gas
for the rest of 2010. Having benefited from government
policies encouraging the use of clean energy, power
generation improved significantly as compared with
2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company (Continued)

Natural gas price increased by RMB0.33/m? with effect
from 15 July 2010; 30% of the increased cost was borne
by natural gas power plants and the remaining 70%
was covered by increasing the tariff by RMBO0.06/kwh.
Pursuant to Circular Guofa [2010] No. 35 issued by the
State Council of the PRC on 18 October 2010, foreign-
investment enterprises were not entitled to waivers or
reductions in construction tax and education surcharge
with effect from 1 December 2010. The power plants
of the Group were required to pay construction tax and
education surcharge from 1 December 2010 at the rates
of 5% or 7% and 3% of the VAT payable respectively.
Although the two reasons above brought certain adverse
effect to the operating results of the Group, the Group
managed to increase power generation and achieved
remarkable growth of net profit in 2010 as compared
with 2009.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash generated from operating activities was
RMB143,714,000 (2009: RMB110,054,000),
representing an increase over last year. In general,
the tariff revenue generated in the previous month
is received in the current month and used for the
settlement of fuel purchases of the current month. Net
cash used in investing activities was RMB11,632,000
(2009: RMB102,303,000) which was mainly used for
the payment of property, plant and equipment. Net
cash used in financing activities was RMB142,519,000
(net cash generated in 2009: RMB139,460,000),
which  mainly consists of repayment of interest-
bearing borrowings amounting to RMB357,300,000
and proceeds from a new interest-bearing borrowings
of RMB264,000,000, and payment of dividends of
RMB6,206,000.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a cash
balance of RMB174,881,000 (31 December
2009: RMB185,318,000) of which approximately
RMB87,334,000 (representing part of the proceeds
raised from the Company’s listing) was designated for
financing new investment projects, while the remaining
balance of approximately RMB87,547,000 was available
for working capital purpose. Cash was generally placed
with bank as short-term deposit.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB67,778,000 (31
December 2009: RMB37,946,000). The net current
liabilities increased mainly due to the increase in relatively
low interest bills payable by the Group in 2010 to finance
the purchases of natural gas.

The Group regularly monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it fulfills its short-term and
long-term liquidity requirements. In spite of the fact
that part of its borrowings is short-term borrowings
expiring within one year from major banks with which
the Group maintains long term satisfactory cooperation
relationships, the Directors are confident that the Group
will be able to satisfy all conditions associated with the
renewal of the short-term borrowing required by the
banks. The Directors believe that the Group has sufficient
working capital for future operations.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of its gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including all loans and borrowings as well as long
term payables, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2010, the gearing ratio was
40.43%, representing a decrease of 7.27 percentage
points (31 December 2009: 47.70%) over 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Foreign Exchange

The Group has a Hong Kong dollar short term deposit
placed in a licensed bank in Hong Kong. With the
exchange rate fluctuation between the Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi, such exchange movement may
affect the financial position of the Group. Since the
Group’s operating expenses were mainly denominated in
Renminbi and its turnover was also settled in Renminbi,
the Group did not hedge the exchange risks through any
forward contracts or other instruments.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had authorized,
but not contracted for, capital commitments relating
to property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB83,551,000. During the year, the Group had not
had any major contingent liabilities and off-balance-sheet
commitments.

Details of the capital commitment of the Group are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Use of Proceeds from the IPO

In July 2009, the Company issued 115,000,000 shares
(including 15,000,000 shares issued upon the exercise of
over-allocation option) under the IPO. The offer price was
HK$1.66 per share and the net proceeds from the IPO
were approximately HK$148,000,000 after deducting
IPO expenses.

As at the date of this report, approximately
HK$34,000,000 of the net proceeds was used
in accordance with the manner as set out in the
Prospectus for payment of the balance consideration
for the acquisition of 47% minority interests in De-
Neng Power Plant. According to the Prospectus and
the announcement on the over-allocation of shares,
approximately HK$105,100,000 was set aside for
the development of the first phase of a new gas-fired
cogeneration power plant in Anji county (“Anji Project”) in
Zhejiang Province.

Although the approval process of Anji Project took longer
than we have expected due to certain factors which
were beyond the control of the Group, after our efforts in
communicating and negotiating with relevant government
authorities, Anji Project was approved by the Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission on 27
December 2010, with an installed capacity of 38.5MW
and a total investment of RMB303.79 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Use of Proceeds from the IPO (Continued)

According to our plan, the construction of Anji Project
is scheduled to commence in the second quarter of
2011, and its core equipment will be imported from a
designated supplier in Japan, but no contract has been
signed yet. As a huge earthquake hit Japan in early
March 2011, the Group believes the timely supply of
the core equipment from the said Japanese supplier
will likely be affected. Currently, the Group is assessing
the case. The Group anticipates that there will be a
reasonable delay in the construction of Anji Project.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, since climatic changes and
development of low carbon economy will be under
global spotlight, the clean energy industry will be one of
the industries with the strongest development potential.
Under the 12th Five Year Plan, the clean energy industry
of China will be further developed to optimize the
structure of the energy generation industry. The use
of coal in power generation will be reduced while the
use of natural gas and other reusable energy sources
will be increased. As one of the clean energy providers
in Zhejiang Province, our Group will benefit from the
favourable policies promoting environmentally friendly
energy of the PRC government.

According to the strategic planning of the energy industry
of China, the percentage of use of natural gas to total
energy consumption will increase from 4% at present to
approximately 8% by the end of the 12th Five Year Plan
period. The natural gas power plants play an essential
role in energy saving, emission reduction and peak-load
regulation of the power grid. The outlook of natural gas
power generation is promising.

China’s economy continues to develop steadily.
According to the statistics released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China on 20 January 2011,
the GDP of China for 2010 was RMB39,798.3 billion,
representing an increase of 10.3% as compared with
last year. According to the statistics released by China
Electricity Council on 17 January 2011, the total power
consumption of China in 2010 was 4,192.3 billion kwh,
an increase of 14.56% as compared with last year. The
growth rate was 8.12 percentage points higher than
that of last year. It is expected that the demand for
power will continue to grow in 2011. Like last year, our
power plants have been granted the 3,500-hours power
generation plan for 2011 by the relevant government
authorities.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

As a clean, efficient and high quality energy, natural gas
is used worldwide. Natural gas is also important to the
adjustment of overall energy structure, environmental
protection and industrial development in Zhejiang
Province. Therefore, natural gas is widely introduced
in Zhejiang Province. It is expected that the supply of
natural gas from Sichuan to Zhejiang will further increase
to approximately 1.6—1.8 billion m® in 2011, representing
an increase of 0.35-0.55 billion m® as compared to 1.25
billion m® in 2010. The supply of natural gas through
West-East Gas Pipeline (Phase ) of PetroChina to
Zhejiang will also increase slightly. The Company believes
that the Group will benefit from the increase of supply of
natural gas in Zhejiang in 2011.

In addition, the Group is well prepared to develop and
invest in new projects in areas such as gas-fired power
generation and cogeneration projects, and carry out
investigation, research and development of clean energy
projects other than natural gas. The Group will further
increase its reserves in projects for current and long term
development, and will expand its market share in the
clean energy supply in the PRC.

The Group will further strengthen and develop its human
resources and the training of talents to create a better
enterprise cultural atmosphere. In addition, the Group
will continue to enhance its budget management and
risk control, and upgrade its corporate governance in
order to facilitate its steady growth and sustainable
development.

Leveraging the core business of clean energy in the
PRC, the Group believes that it will have remarkable
development in the future and will become a leading
clean energy enterprise in China in the long run.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.03 per share payable to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members on 3 June 2011. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or around 24 June 2011 following
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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MAJOR INVESTMENT, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

As of the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
date of this report, the Group did not have any major
acquisitions and disposals. The Group is seeking
investment opportunities in other clean energy projects
to further expand its operation.

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

The Group’s power plants have adopted various internal
policies and implemented protective measures to prevent
health and safety hazards. The policies adopted by the
Company are in line with government regulations. There
were no material accidents or suspensions during the
reporting period.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Each of the Group’s power plants has installed a
monitoring system to monitor the emission volume
of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides on a real-time
basis. The emission is inspected regularly to determine
whether the relevant standard has been satisfied before
discharge.

During the power generation process, conventional coal-
fired power plant discharges waste water and emits
air pollutants, such as sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides
and fine particles. The Group’s power plants are fuelled
with natural gas which is a cleaner fossil fuel. Unlike
conventional coal-fired power plants, the Group’s power
plants emit significantly less amount of nitrogen oxides
and barely any sulphur dioxide and fine particles. For the
same amount of heat generated, combusting natural gas
releases less than 50% carbon dioxide as compared to
combusting coal.

The Group believes that the environmental protection
system and facilities in our power plants are in full
compliance with the national and local regulations on
environment protection.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEABERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

1.

Mr. CHAI Wei (418)

Mr. Chai, aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 September 2008. Mr.
Chai is also the President of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall business strategy and
corporate development of the Group, sourcing
and development of new projects and maintaining
relationship between the Group and the local
government authorities in  which the Group’s
power plants are located. Mr. Chai has over 17
years of experience in corporate development
and management in a variety of sectors, including
energy and public media. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chai worked in public media industries.
Mr. Chai was the founder of Zhejiang King Island
Limited (MI£SEEEMRAF) and Zhejiang
Expressway Advertising Co. (MISEEEA
Al). He was a director and general manager of
Zhejiang King lIsland Limited (I & BEEER
72 7A]) during the period from 1992 to 2003 and
was the vice-chairman and general manager of
Zhejiang Expressway Advertising Co. (/T =& E
£/ A)) during the period from 1998 to 2003. Since
2005, Mr. Chai has been responsible for the overall
management of all our power plants, namely Blue
Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant (collectively “Our Power Plants”).
Mr. Chai has been a director of Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (/&% £ 8ERBMR A R]) (“Shanghai
Pu-Xing”) since 2002 and was the general manager
of Shanghai Pu-Xing during the period from 2002 to
December 2008. He is currently the Vice President
of China Energy Association, deputy director of the
editors committee of Zhejiang Economic Magazine*
(T ASEMHARES), and member of the China
Natural Gas Industry Magazine Council* ( {# El&
KRR TE) #FIEES). Mr. Chai graduated from
Zhejiang Art and Craft School* (T4 T #31i&
) majoring in industrial design.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRSREEAERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

2.

Mr. HU Xian Wei (& %&£ 1&)

Mr. Hu, aged 33, is an executive Director, Finance
Director and Vice President of the Company,
responsible for the financial management and
planning & operation management of the Group.
Mr. Hu joined the Group in May 2005. He was
appointed a Director on 21 March 2009. He has
over 13 years’ experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Hu
is also a director of De-Neng Power Plant, Blue
Sky Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant. As
a director of Our Power Plants, Mr. Hu has been
involved in the management of Our Power Plants
and is therefore experienced in the operations of
Our Power Plants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Hu had worked for Wan Xiang Qian Chao Co.,
Ltd.r (BREHRHABER2AT), China Wanxiang
Finance Co., Ltd. (BRIE#E R A7), and Zhejiang
Hangmin Co. Ltd* (fMTI&EMRRDERAT]), a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, as
the finance chief. He graduated from Southwest
University of Science and Technology in 2005,
majoring in accounting. He is an accountant,
economist and certified tax advisor in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREEAERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

3.

Mr. DING Guang Ping (7T }F)

Mr. Ding, aged 53, a non-executive Director of
the Company and the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Ding was appointed a Director on 21 March
2009. Mr. Ding has over 11 years of experience
in corporate management and had worked for
the government for over 10 years. Prior to joining
the Group in March 2009, Mr. Ding was the head
of the Urumgi Commission for Economic System
Restructuring Production Department (&% 7752
MZHER) during the period from July 1989 to
March 1994 and was the deputy director of the
Urumai Economic Commission* (58 ARBE&EZ 8
&) and chief of the Urumgi Bureau of Exploration
& Development of Geology & Mineral Resources*®
(BEAREHIER) during the period from April 1994
to 1999. He was the chairman of SDIC Xinjiang
Luobupo Potash Co., Ltd* (¥iEZ&M AFEER
[R/A7F]) and was the chief executive of D’Long
International Strategic Investment Company* ({&
P BIFR B RS E B R /AF)). Mr. Ding has been the
managing president of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd (FEEMIZERABRAF]) since 2005 and
is responsible for the overall management of the
company. He has been a director of Shanghai Pu-
Xing since December 2008. Mr. Ding graduated
from Xi’an University of Science & Technology*
(AL HEEEEPT) in 1989 with a Bachelor’'s degree
in  Engineering, majoring in industrial electric
automation, and completed his post-graduate
study in political economics in 1999. Mr. Ding is
nominated to the Board by Mr. Lu Wei Ding, a
controlling Shareholder.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRSREEAERERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

4.

Mr. FENG Li Min (5 R)

Mr. Feng, aged 49, a non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Feng joined the Group when he
was appointed a Director on 21 March 2009. Mr.
Feng has over 20 years of experience in banking
and corporate finance. Mr. Feng has been the
vice-president of China Wanxiang Holding Co.,
Ltd (FEI&ERZER AR A F]) since 2005. He was a
director of Shanghai Pu-Xing from February 2007
until December 2008. He had worked for Woncore
Communications Co., Ltd from 2001 to 2004 as
vice-president and chief financial officer. Prior to
that, he worked for Bank of China during the period
from 1983 to 1990 and for P&O Steam Navigation
from 1993 to 2000. Mr. Feng graduated from
University of International Relations* (BIFR #8{& £
Br) in 1983 with a BA Degree in English literature
and international relations. Mr. Feng is nominated
to the Board by Mr. Lu Wei Ding, a controlling
Shareholder.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

5.

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (3R <F#£)

Mr. Zhang, aged 51, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhang was
appointed a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr. Zhang is
currently the Managing Director of Barclays Capital.
He has over 20 years of experience in corporate
finance and investment banking. Mr. Zhang had
worked for Securicor Asia Management Limited
as Managing Director. Mr. Zhang holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Harvard
University and a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering
from The University of Queensland.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R

RHBTESH)

4,

BIRLE

BRE 495 ARABIFEHITES P
TEEANF=ZA-+—BMAKREE
EZAEES - BFEEBB0FRITR
TERELR - BFELEA-STAFIE
HBERRERERER ARG EE - In
E-_ZEE+F _AZE-_EZENF+ =
FHELBEEEE HRER_ZZ
—FE_FTTNFECERBEER
NE BB R TSR E o bR HER
—ANZFE—AAEFEEBRAFPRIE
T B AWNZFEE_TTTETHER
ERETHMER - BEER—ANZ
FEENBIBBERSR S REE
FEBEEYBELT BN o Fh AR
ERREREERLAREMAESTS -

BYFHITES

5.

RFREE

REE S15R  ARABUIERITE
E R-_ZETNAFRA_+tHAEZE
BEE o sk H IR A Barclays Capital &
FHEKE BE0FCERMENRKE
RITAEER o R A EE Securicor Asia
Management Limited 2 £ 4&12 - #45
BHABIHERESEEITEULELTH
REBETIERBEETEA -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRSREEAERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

6.

Mr. TSE Chi Man (# % X)

Mr. Tse, aged 57, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tse was appointed
a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr. Tse has over
20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organizations including Chase Manhattan Asia
Limited as a director, Inchcape Pacific Limited
as mergers and acquisitions director, Lerado
Group Holdings Limited as executive director
and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson China Limited as
managing director. Mr. Tse had worked for Imagi
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, from 1999 to 2008 where he
served as a director since 2004 and chief financial
officer since 2007 overseeing the company’s
accounting and finance, administration and human
resources functions. Mr. Tse was also a member
of the Vocational Training Council Design Institute
Advisory Board. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor’s Degree
and a Master Degree in Business Administration,
both from the University of Texas, Arlington.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRSREEAERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

7.

Mr. YAO Xian Guo (k5 E)

Mr. Yao, aged 58, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Yao was appointed
a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr. Yao is the dean,
professor of the College of Public Administration,
Zhejiang University. He is also a member of The
Expert Evaluation Committee of National Social
Science Foundation of China* (EIZRMA&RIEZR
S ERTEHEAER), vice-charman of the China
Industrial Economic Association* (4B T 248752
&), member of the Zhejiang Government Advisory
Council* (I & BFAZ 8E) and the chairman
of the Zhejiang Public Administration Association*
(MMIAAHLEEES). Mr. Yao holds a Master
Degree in Economics from Fudan University. Mr.
Yao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang
Southeast Electric Power Company Limited, both
are companies listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and Zhejiang Asia-Pacific Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Yao also served as independent non-executive
director in Zhejiang Guangsha Co., Ltd. and
Zhejiang Xinhu Venture Investment Co., Ltd., both
are companies listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and Zhejiang Hailiang Co., Ltd., a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors
() has not held any directorships in the last three
years in any public companies the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas; (i) does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; (iiij does not hold
any positions in the Company or other members
of the Group; and (iv) does not have any interests
in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO”).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R

BYFBITES (#)

BB TE

HEE B8 ARRABUIIFNITE
E-R-_ZETNFRA-_THBRERE
REZE -BIEERNIXRBEAKEERS
et RRBE  TREFXHEMEBES
BHARAER PHEIXLEEZER
BREER MIERNERNZESE
B MIEAHERSBEER kL
REBRSRGEBESBR L BN - gl
ERBRIATERNER AR AT
REEERNARAR(ERLERS
RPMLEMAB)MBILIERITES
ANRYNEZ R ZH EHRRAITEH KN
BEERDBRABNBIULIFATES -
HELETEEENIEERNDBERAA
AT RIRERM AR AR (H
REBEFXZAETRR)MNBEILIE
HITEE  URFRIBESX B LT R
AT A RN BR AR MBI IERTT
B%-

BREXHBEEEIN EFZEHER
HF ()R BE=ZFALEEZEEEMLT
AR(EBANRBBXBINMEMEST
BEMNES  (VEARBEMEME
CEREEAE  TERRIEER
RERE : (N ERARABXAKH
HAbp 8 A R EAEEMBAL - R(v)IE &
BEBBEOIESNEZSF RBE KA
(17875 R BB 15101 1) SEXVED AT 57 7€ 19 BX

ozt -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERS &’“‘“EEA,J%FE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEN Jian Ping ((t#¥), aged 57, is the Vice
President of the Company and a director of Blue Sky
Power Plant. Mr. Shen joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Shen is responsible for the project development
management of the Group. He has over 35 years
of experience in the power industry. Mr. Shen had
worked at Hang Zhou Thermal Power Plant (#7/HZAE
%) as deputy factory manager and at Hang Zhou Xie
Lian Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd. (M ipEEAEGRE A
7)) as general manager. He is the Visiting Professor of
Wuhan Electric Power Technical College (EUZE /118
ERITERR) since 2006 and a member of the Zhejiang
Engineering Thermophysics Committee (#T/T& Ti2Z4)
IBEE) since 1995. He graduated from Correspondence
College of the Party School of the Central Committee
of C.P.C. (fHPREREKEZEMT) in 2000, majoring in
economics and Zhejiang University (#/TAE) in 2000
majoring in thermal energy and power engineering.

Mr. ZHENG Xiao Dong (#8/)V3R), aged 39, is the Chief
Engineer of the Company and a director of Blue Sky
Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant. Mr. Zheng
joined the Group in December 2004. Mr. Zheng is
responsible for project construction management of the
Group. He has over 13 years of experience in the power
industry. Before joining the Company, he worked as the
Deputy Chief Engineer at Jiang Su Dong Tai Thermal
Power Plant (T #k58 & #E /). He graduated from Hohai
University (AI/AEY) in 2003, majoring in electrical
engineering and automation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (23IR¥F), aged 34, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai is a member of
CPA Australia since 2002 and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
2004. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in business of
Queensland University of Technology and has over
11 years of experiences in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in May
2009. Prior to that, Mr. Lai was the qualified accountant
and company secretary of a PRC-based computer-
aided software solution provider. In addition, he was
the financial controller of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, and had worked for one of the top four
international accounting firms.

* For translation purposes only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited accounts of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
development, operation and management of power
plants fuelled by natural gas in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2010 are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 51.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.03 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.0252)
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members on 3 June 2011. The proposed
final dividend will be paid on or around 24 June 2011
following approval by the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, distributable reserves
(including share premium and retained earnings) of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB105,565,000
(2009: RMB100,759,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
financial statement.

BORROWINGS

Particular of the borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the donations
made by the Group amounted to RMB40,000 (2009:
RMB901,090).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.
The Company does not currently have any share option
arrangement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the percentage
of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers combined was 73.85%
and 100%, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had
only one supplier of natural gas and it attributed to 100%
of the Group’s natural gas purchases.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(Continued)

To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
of the Company or their associates, or any shareholder
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company held any interests in any of the above
customers and suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements. These transactions do not constituted
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2010 and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. DING Guang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Li Min

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo

The Directors’ biographical information is set out on
pages 23 to 28.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
each annual general meeting. Mr. Hu Xian Wei, Mr. Feng
Li Min and Mr. Yao Xian Guo will retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R

FTERFRHEER#)

BARBRMM  ARAREFLEBE ARME
AR A AN R A B BT AE%IA L & BR # &
FRELMEP RHEHEMER -

BELTXRS

AEBAATZEANBET X SFITEHNYH
WRIGE26 - REFHEHTRH TBRE AT
HErm EmARR( ETARR) FB14AZFTHE Y

E=E

BE-T—2F+-A=+—ALFERH
ERREAM  AAAGEEFME ¢

HITES
REFXRLE(HEE)
ARRTE

FHUTES

TR¥RE(EE)
HIREE

BUFHUTES
SRSF MR A
WEXRE
o B A

EEREEHNE23E28H -

REAXFAMEIZAMA - EF(BEIFENT
EX)ANEBREBRRBFAS LBESR -
HERSE - BIRFKERKEELE LR
T AREFATMERLBENTERRESF
REBEEL -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years. None of the
Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted as at 31 December 2010 or any time during
the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance) (“SFO”) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2010
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2010, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZEZRKR

AARREMEFTRTIBETRAEMA R
“E-TF+-_A=t+—H  FTIAL(E
RAEFXETBTRABRINRARAK
D BB B D A RIBRE SRR RS
XVERE2 K E3 0 BAMA AT K EN R K
KRB - RARARNRRIRIEZ S NS &
EIBHHFEMNELMHERIORSE

Number of shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued
held (rote share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest mERE EERITRA
BRRER L F e FH B BR 4 B B (e Bk
Amber International Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 72.29%
Investment Co., Ltd. EmEA A
(“Amber International”)
RIBBRREBR AT
( T3RIBERR] )
GDZ International Limited Interest in controlled 300,000,000 (L) 72.29%
(“GDZ") (ote 2) corporation
GDZ International Limited R LB
SIGDZIR =
Mr. Lu Wei Ding (“Mr. Lu”) ™2 |nterest in controlled 300,000,000 (L) 72.29%
BESKE corporation
([BHE] ) W2 R EE
Ms. Li Li (9 Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 72.29%
TRt HWED il e
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:
1) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the shares.

2) These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as to
90% by GDZ, which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Therefore,
GDZ and Mr. Lu are deemed to be interested in these shares. The
remaining 10% of Amber International is owned by DUOU Investment
Co. Ltd, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chai Wei, a director of the
Company.

©)) Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2010, the
Company has not been notified by any other persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at the
date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a total of 257
employees, excluding 18 temporary staff (31 December
2009: 253). The Group determines employees’
remuneration according to industry practices, financial
performance and employees’ performance. The Group
also provides other fringe benefits such as insurance,
medical benefits and mandatory provident fund
contributions with an aim to retain talents on all levels
who will make further contributions to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 3
June 2011. A notice convening the annual general
meeting will be published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in late April 2011.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 1 June 2011 to Friday, 3 June 2011
(both dates inclusive). In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend and the right to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 31 May 2011 at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the public information available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the public float requirement as set out in the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Feng Li
Min, a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the internal controls and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ding Guang Ping
Chairman, Board of Directors

25 March 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize the
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company adopted sound governance and
disclosure practices and continued to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management and
reinforce the corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) and the rules
on the Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Rules”)
as set out respectively in Appendices 14 and 23 to the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises seven directors, including two
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
sets out the composition of the Board, by category of
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHAI Wei (President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. DING Guang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Li Min

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 =Z—ZFE#HE 039 |

TEREBRER
EESRNIHYRBREZAREBERAUARESE
BHE PEEBEEMBRROR - AQBHETT
RBEESLEERR  URHERTAMER
A R EERERMEELR
e

BE_Z-ZFFT_A=+—-RHLEFE &
RE—EHET DR R LR R+ D
R-+=0XERFATAUMEEENR
SADREEERRERAUNEEELRR
all) e

ESETESEXRS

ARACERRA LR RIM &+ P8R T
Hl -

EARRMEHBEEAR  2REFTHRER
Bz -_Z—ZEZF+_A=+—BHIFE—=H
BRZEFRIMZEERTE -

BExg

ExzgAE

EXgHELRES  BEMENTES
MEFNTEER=_ZBIFATESFT - T
XEEFERINHEFTEXE :

BITESE :

SRBRE ()
HEREE

FHITEE .
TR¥RE(EE)
BIIRFKE




040

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo

The Board’'s composition demonstrates a balance of
core competence with regard to the business of the
Group so as to provide effective leadership and the
required expertise to the Group. The executive Directors
and senior management have extensive management
experience in the gas-fired power generation industry.
The biographical details and experience of the Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 23 to 29 of
this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic  development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and
on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by business needs.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, six Board
meetings, three Audit Committee meetings and two
Remuneration Committee meeting were convened.
Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of the
members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of
Individual Directors at Meetings” below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each
Director at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby
the Directors can put forward his proposed items into
the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors 3 days before a
Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make
an informed decisions. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Company is of the view that
all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

Chairman and President

As at the date of this report, the Chairman and the
President of the Company are Mr. DING Guang Ping and
Mr. CHAI Wei respectively. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the President so as to delineate
their respective areas of responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions
for the Group. The President is responsible for the
daily management of the business of the Group,
implementation of the policies, business objectives and
plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board
for the overall operation of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 =Z—ZFEHE 041

BEEg @)

EEEggR L)
BEFEEZBTIRS THRET SR
RBE EFAHAREZEEMASZREE - €
BEENEHNESEX S EEST S
BRI =BAHEEEHN  UAERFELAS
RE - ZERAEMEFTESER  AESER
Faﬁgéﬁﬁ%ﬂ °

BE_Z-—TFS+_A=+—RHIEFE &

CEREBETLPTRUINERZEEL =42
VHHMTES HY - 2BUFHNTESRA
BEEEXERNEST BB EENE
KA

BYFHTES
ARBERIBEBYFATEETNFES
VR c ARBRA  MEBIUIENTE
ERE LTWRAFESAMGH AN TG B
FhzEsl  HBBIAL -

ETERABHE

BEARESHY  ARAZFERERD A
THIPEERKRBEE -TRFEEHRZAE
BFfR?  RESBZAETHREARERE °

IFRARFEEES HMREFSHWE
AR EAEEZEBRBREEBRRED
M- BHEBEAKEXBZAFTEE UK
ERBR XHEEREFTSH TS
VTRAEFSERAEENBELE -




042

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

1k E/H%&%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
is three years. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive
or non-executive) is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 June 2009 with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. The Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
ZHANG Shou Lin and Mr. YAO Xian Guo and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. DING Guang Ping. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. ZHANG Shou
Lin.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and
retaining directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group’s
business successfully. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration
policies for the Directors and senior management of
the Company and for determining their remuneration
packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by
the Board;

o recommendation to the Board the policy and

structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

o determination of the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind and compensation payments;

° review and approval of the compensation
arrangements in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment, or
dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive
Directors and senior management; and

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee
performance.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2010, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to review
the Company’s remuneration policies, the terms of the
service contracts and the performance of all executive
Directors and senior management. Details of attendance
of Remuneration Committee meeting of each of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out in
“Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named
basis, are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee.
Currently all new appointments to the Board are
considered by the Board whose deliberations are based
on the following criteria:

° possession of core competencies, including but not
limited to financial literacy, that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and complement the skills
and competencies of the existing Directors on the
Board;

o ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties
and responsibilities effectively; and

o possession of a good track record of experience at
a senior level in corporations/organizations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 18 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. FENG Li Min, a non-executive Director.
Mr. TSE Chi Man is the chairman of the committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for
communication between the Directors and the external
auditors as regards their duties relating to, among other
things, financial and other reporting, internal controls,
external and internal audits and to assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities by providing independent view
and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the
Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their
duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

o making recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor and
to approve the remuneration and terms of such
appointments;

o reviewing and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

° developing and implement policies on the
engagement of external auditor for non-audit
services;

° monitoring the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report
to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial
position;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

° ensuring the management has fulfilled its duty to
maintain an effective internal control system; and

° reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter
and any questions raised by the auditor to the
management and the management’s response.

Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee
during the vyear ended 31 December 2010. The
committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2010, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
statutory compliance. In addition to reviewing the
Group’s internal control system, the committee also
reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit
Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual
Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT BREEHEEREER

MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the board should meet TEERSTHEE - %%Aﬁéﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
regularly for at least 4 times a year at approximately ®EOEFETT E R RFE—IR o E E'J
quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual directors ESHEESES FMEEE &%V? BE
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee SENBERET ZZDT 3

and the Audit Committee, respectively, is set forth in the

table below:

Meetings attended/Meetings held in 2010
“TE-ZHECHESR CETER

Remuneration Audit
Name of director Board Committee Committee
EEHSE EEXE FMZEE ERZTEE
Mr. CHAI Wei 6/6 N/A N/A
e (& 4 A 38 A 5 A
Mr. HU Xian Wei 6/6 N/A N/A
HHEREEAE T iE A A
Mr. DING Guang Ping 5/6 2/2 N/A
TRFrE T
Mr. FENG Li Min 6/6 N/A 3/3
BYREE i A
Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin 6/6 2/2 3/3
ok SFAR SR A
Mr. TSE Chi Man 5/6 N/A 3/3
HEXEAE T iE A
Mr. YAO Xian Guo 4/6 2/2 3/3
ok ST Bl o A&

046 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRIHEERBRA A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERME

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were
responsible for providing services in connection with
the review of the Group’s financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2010 and the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the total
remuneration in respect of review and audit services
provided by KPMG for the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,100,000 and the Group had
not engaged KPMG in the provision of any non-audit
services.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
(which endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG, be re-appointed as the external auditors of the
Company for 2011.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and information
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results
in a timely manner within the limits of three months and
two months respectively after the end of the relevant
financial periods, as laid down in the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 51
to 144, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Z AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—_FT—FF+-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AR TR AR T T
Turnover EXEH 4 654,315 396,229
Operating expenses KEREX
Fuel consumption KRKLE (480,600) (270,652)
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & K 5 (47,661) (37,558)
Repairs and maintenance HERRE (2,261) (2,014)
Personnel costs A B AR 5((ii) (21,658) (15,388)
Administrative expenses TR X (16,457) (11,787)
Sales related taxes SHEMBEHIE (1,136) (581)
Other operating expenses Hth &M= (2,710) )
Operating profit KERF 81,832
Finance income B A 2,519 3,621
Finance expenses B IS (42,649) (40,882)
Netfinance costs __ _ _ ___ __ MIBERAF®E _________50_ (40,130) Izl
Other netincome ¢ Hpe A ¥ 6 _ 1,354 2,234
Profit before taxation RR i B 5 43,056 21,567
Income tax Fr 15t 7 (2,141) —
Profit attributable to equity FREAQDTEEFEFA
shareholders of the Company  FE{5 3% Fl
for the year 21,567
Other comprehensive income FREMEEE A
for the year (after tax and (BRBREF I EAER):
reclassification adjustment): 11
Foreign currency translation BINEBINERE =5
differences for foreign operations (3,387) (45)
Total comprehensive income FREQDFAERZBFEA
attributable to equity EhA2EKRAELE
shareholders of the Company
for the year 21,622
Basic and diluted earnings BREARBERF
per share (RMB) (ANE¥T) 12 0.06
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FOOE4AEFTE M AXEYHHRE —3F
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to B o BARNBIEZRITAE AESE R MmE
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the 1~ 9 AR B 5% 15 3 7 M 55 23(d)

profit for the year are set out in note 23(d).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF ' FINANCIAL POSITION
fr B B AR

At 31 December 2010
R-F—FFEF+_F=+—H

o052

2010 2009
= _TTNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3% NGB ARETT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KkERE 14 803,645 838,683
Lease prepayments ERAES 15 28,483 30,896
________________________________________ 832,128 o ?629_,5_79 i
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 8,978 3,954
Trade and other receivables e E S & H 5K IE 17 73,073 34,456
Tax recoverable CIRLQEIRS R 7(iii) 3,375 3,132
Pledged deposits EEAER 18 132,513 89,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBESEEY 19 174,881 185,318
________________________________________ 392,820 L _31_6_,3_69 i
Current liabilities REBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 20 239,000 235,000
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 & H b 518 21 221,598 119,306
________________________________________ 460,508 [NCIPRCIH
Netcurrent liabilities ______ABAEFE ____________ CAgl) (37,946
Total assets less current REERRBEE
] _Ii_alziliti_ei _________________________________ 764,350 L _8911_,6_3§ i
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Interest-bearing borrowings AFEEE 20 247,700 345,000
Long-term payables KHE IR 22 22,298 25,744
Deferred tax liabilities EIENIE A 1a 7()(c) 2,141 =
________________________________________ 272,139 L ?7_0_,7_44_1 i
Net assets BEEFE 492,211 460,889

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e MR AR R R ()

At 31 December 2010
R-ZE—FFf-_H=+—H

2010 2009

—z-25 L LIRS

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
his EONLEFN AR%TT

23(b) 36,582 36,582
455,629 424,307

Capital and reserves EXRf#EE

Share capital N

Reserves 1

Total equity attributable to ERATERBFEA
equity shareholders FE R

of the Company

492,211 460,889

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 March 2011.

Chai Wei
P
Director

EF

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these
financial statements.

BEeN T —F=ZA-_tHAHERE
BT o

Hu Xian Wei
LR

Director

EF

FOE 14BN EN T AZENIEHRE —
% o
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
IR

At 31 December 2010
R-F—FFEF+_F=+—H

2010 2009

=t 28 —TTNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 INL-BP A AR¥ T

Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KkERE 50 128

Investment in subsidiaries EWE R A 16 358,044 358,044

________________________________________ 358,094 o 335_8_,1_72 i

Current assets REBEE

Trade and other receivables JEWE S & E b5k 1E 17 45,636 30,355

Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEED 19 103,495 116,340
149,131 146,695

Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables _ _ _ _ _ J BEUBESRAMPE _____21 _ 11,504 [ 9,540

Netcurrentassets  _______ABHEERE ____________ 137,627 REIAITE

Net assets EEFE 495,721 495,327

Capital and reserves EAXRf#EE 23(a)

Share capital Ji% 2% 36,582 36,582

Reserves &% & 459,139 458,745

Total equity 48R 495,721 495,327

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EEgR T ——F=-AZ+HABEIAERK

directors on 25 March 2011. PEEEAT o
Chai Wei Hu Xian Wei
P &R
Director Director
EE EZE
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FEOER14ABEFTH N AZEMIEHREK —
financial statements. 9 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARBED =

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE—FE—FFL _HA=1T—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AREREREAEE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  surplus Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings interests equity

EE
BE ROEE EAHEE SUHRE BHEE EIRE RERA FERER 48R
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Mt ARETT ARBTL ARBTT ARBTL ARBETRL ARETR ARSTE ARETT ARBTL

At 1 January 2009 R-BENE
-A-8 23(c)(iia) = — 306,883 = 17,238 — 37389 91266 452,776

Changes in equity for —ZBZhEEHR

2009: L
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 21,567 = 21,567
Other comprehensive Hie2EHA

income 11 - - - - - (45) - - (45)

Total comprehensive FREEUALE

income for the year - - - - - (45) 21,567 - 21,522
Acquisition of non- WEEERRER

controlling interests 23(c)(ii)(b) - - (23,261) - - - - (72,303) (95,564)
Capital contribution TE 23(c)(ic) - - 21,385 - - - - - 21,385
Arising from the BHEEL

Reorganisation 23(c)(ii) - —  (306,883) 306,883 - - - - -

Issuance of shares by RERNEE
share offer BRG 23,0 8814 137,500 - - - - - 146314

Issuance of shares by REBEEE

over-allocation Bk M 23(o)i) 1,322 20,629 - - - - - - 21,951
Capitalisation issue BRILEST 23()(ij/23(c)) 26,446 (26,446) = = = = = = =
Share issuance expenses & A & 1T E - (38,959 - - - - - - (38,959
Dividends to equity EREAARE

shareholders 23(d) - - - - - - (49,573) - (49,573)
Dividends to non- FRBRBRERS

controlling shareholders 23(d) - - - - - - - (18,963) (18,963
Appropriation to reserves % 23(c)v) - - - - 2,486 = (2,486) = =

At 31 December 2009 R=-ZBRE

+=A=+-8 36582 92724 (1876) 306,883 19,724 (45 6897 — 460,889
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FOOFVMAEFTEM T RZEM HHRE — 3
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
n‘/-ﬁ = *E = @J ’13«% ( Fi=| )

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE T FTFF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERBBAREY
Statutory
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
EE
BRE  BRAEE EBARE AOREE BHEE EXRE RERA Y
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
DRI AR%TR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR AR%TR

At 31 December 2009 R=-ZEZNE+=A
and 1 January 2010 =t-8Rk
—Z2-Z%¥-8-H 36,582 92,724 (1,876) 306,383 19,724 6,897 460,889

Changes in equity for —Z—ZEEZLEH :

2010:
Profit for the year FREH 40,915
Other comprehensive Hip2EHBA

income 11 (3,387)

Total comprehensive FRZENAEE

income for the year (3,387) 40,915 37,528
Dividends to equity BaiEARE

shareholders 23(d) (6,206)
Appropriation to reserves & Z it 23(c)(v) : (5,166)

At 31 December 2010 R=-Z-%f
+=A=+-H 36,582 92,724 (1,876) 306,883 24,890 (3,432) 36,440 492,211

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FOF14MBEFEN T AZEM B RE — I
financial statements. % o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—_FT—FF+-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
=B 2 —_TTNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3T AR¥ T NG R
Operating activities REED
Profit for the year FREF 40,915 21,567
Adjustments for: KHERIEE -
Depreciation for property, ME - BELMIEITE
plant and equipment 5(iii) 46,836 36,727
Amortisation of lease prepayments T8 1< 8 & 5 54 5(iii) 825 831
Net finance costs B 7 B AN % BB 5(i) 40,130 37,261
Net gain on sale of property, HEDE BER
plant and equipment B e - (294) -
Net loss on disposal of lease HEBRNESEBEFE
prepayment 171 —
Income tax expenses Frig®iMx 2,141 —
Operating profit before changes & E& &% 8 A 1Y
in working capital FEE— g 130,724 96,386
Change in inventories FEIER (5,024) (567)
Change in trade and FE W B 5 K E th 5 I8 3G R
other receivables (38,417) 63,697
Change in trade and e B 5 & B th 5IFIE R
other payables 98,397 (9,309)
Interest paid B F B (41,723) (40,525)
Income tax (paid)/refund Frig®i (B ), BE 7 (i) (243) 372
Net cash generated from RETBMESRSFHE
operating activities 143,714 110,054
Investing activities REES
Interest received B U F B 2,519 3,595
Acquisition of non-controlling W iE T IR
interests 23(c)(ii)(b) (95,564)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEWE  BELEKE
plant and equipment Ffr 15 338 785 =
Proceeds from disposal of MEENE SIS RIE
lease prepayment 1,217 =
Payment for property, plant and SAUE - BER
equipment LB E (16,153) (10,334)
Net cash used in investing REZEBFARESTE
activities (11,632) (102,303)

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these

financial statements.

FEOE F14M4EME M T AZET K HREK —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
an\/\Iﬁ.ﬁ/JILE%‘% (%E)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE_F—FFL_A=1—HILFE

2010 2009
=t 28 —TTNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3T AR¥ T T NG Ry
Financing activities MEER
Proceeds from share offer and BHEENRBEILS
over-allocation, net of issuance FriS k18 - E Mk 23(b)(iii)/
expenses BTEA 23(c)(i) 129,306
Proceeds from interest-bearing FFEEEMENRE
borrowings 264,000 370,000
Repayment of interest-bearing BETEEE
borrowings (357,300) (309,000)
Change in pledged deposits [REEWER G (43,013) (3,695)
Dividends paid B3R A 23(d) (6,206) (47,151)
Net cash (used in)/ generated B EEE (FTA),Fri8
from financing activities REeEFE (142,519) 139,460
Net (decrease)/ increase incash IRERIREEEHOR L),/
and cash equivalents )RR (10,437) 147,211
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BWMEBER
1 January HEEEBY 185,318 38,107
Cash and cash equivalentsat R+ -A=+—HBWEER
31 December ReZEEY 174,881 185,318

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FOFRMAEFTE M AZEMEHRE —
financial statements. % o
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Amber Energy Limited (‘the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) to rationalise the group structure
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Reorganisation”), the Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
29 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”). The Company’s
shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 10
July 2009.

Since all entities which took part in the
Reorganisation were under common control of a
group of ultimate equity shareholders, the Group is
regarded as a continuing entity resulting from the
reorganisation of entities under common control.
These financial statements have been prepared on
the basis that the current group structure had been
in existence at the beginning of the earliest period
presented. Accordingly, the consolidated results of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009 include the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2009 or,
if later, since their respective dates of incorporation
as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the two years presented. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have
been eliminated on consolidation.

1

—RERRZHEE

FAERARAR ([ ARA)REE
NEFRLANBEREHERERENE
EREREREE(—NAAN—FE=R
AR B ARIBE]) MK BER
=R /N

REGARRABOREEBERISMA
RAR(TBRAT])ERET - NRAF K
EffB AR (AW AEE])ETEM
(TE#H]) NIiEHEBERE - EHK -
RRRKAREEREETSME QA
MR AR  EHEFBHRARRN =
ETNFRNA-TARTENERER
([HERER] - ARAROR TN
FEATHEBIMLET -

MR2EEANMEEREXRA —HE&
RIESFAEALRES @ HAEEERA
MEARZHERBLCEAMEXRNEE
KEER - RAZZEVERRE - RE
SEEBESAERER T HERS
REGFE Bt  AEEHE-ZT—F
ER_BEANFE+_A=+—BHIFE
MR AEERIEARARRENBAR A
—EENF-A—HxkE8iEMKZH
H(LREBEEARE)BITHEE  HMWE
EEBEEERAERAMEFE —ERF
E-FIBEEREEAAXRS REHER
A AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 —ZE—Z&EHE

059



080

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (IASs) and related Interpretations,
promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting period
reflected in these financial statements.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREITHBEE)
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) BMBHERRHEINEE
statements

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“BMB”), which is rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

In  particular, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are described as
follows:

(i) Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on management’s regular review
of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectibility. A considerable level
of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. Any increase
or decrease in the impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts would affect
profit or loss in future years.

(ii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment other
than major generator equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value. Major generator equipment which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process are depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Depreciation (Continued)

The Group reviews annually the useful
life, the expected production volume of
an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Recognition of income taxes and
deferred tax assets

Determining income tax provision
involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The
management carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The
tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised
in respect of temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable
profits.  Management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as
“minority interests”) represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASITHEE)
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling (c) WBARRIERRREER (&)

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are  presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2())).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of profit or loss on disposal.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASITHEE)
(Continued)
(e) Translation of foreign currencies (e) HEBE

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Renminbi at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the reporting
date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Financial instruments

0]

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans
and receivables and deposits on the
date that they are originated. All other
financial assets (including assets
designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are recognised initially on the trade
date at which the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment
losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents, and trade and
other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash balances and call deposits with
original maturities of three months or
less.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
All financial liabilities (including liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are recognised initially on the trade
date at which the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled or expired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHXE
(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) () £@MIEE)
(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities (i) FiTELHMEE(#)
(Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities are offset EEASETEZEHESH
and the net amount presented in the EEHNBEMNHEBSE AR
statement of financial position when, RIFEELELENRFEE
and only when, the Group has a legal EERBEAGER  FAK
right to offset the amounts and intends HeMmMEEHRBEBE MEH
either to settle on a net basis or to FERMBMRAKZET -
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
The Group has the following non- AEBBEUTHEITESRE
derivative financial liabilities: loans and &: ERREE EBKES
borrowings, trade and other payables, T B th 5838 A & &= B JE 5 3K
and long-term payables. 8 o
Such financial liabilities are recognised ZETRBEVIERATE
initially at fair value plus any directly MERBEZELE S K AE
attributable transaction costs. ReoMTHEREZ ZE2H
Subsequent to initial recognition these BERBEBRME AR EH
financial liabilities are measured at ARG E

amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(iij) Share capitals (iii) R K
Ordinary shares R
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TREROBERARE -BITE
Incremental costs directly attributable BROBEZEGEZERKDSN
to the issue of ordinary shares are BRAERBETEZEBERAR
recognised as a deduction from equity, 2 Hl g o

net of any tax effects.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

0]

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(j)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to
a working condition for its intended
use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.
Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment, and
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an
item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied  within
the component will flow to the Group
and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced
component is derecognised. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an
asset less its residual value. Significant
components of individual assets are
assessed and if a component has a
useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, that component
is depreciated separately.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment other than major generator
equipment is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant
and equipment.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

2

EREHBEE)
(9) W% -BEERREE)

(i) HELX

HERME BERREE
BEPAMHAEEREEE
BB in FT M & AR K&
BN YRR A EEX
A RIBEBRAERNZEHE
BREEER - WERID
BREERREER - %
BEREENBBEERN
RELEREBRZER -

(i) #E
MEREEXNANRFEKER
FE-AREENEZSH
THTHGH MEEEDS
WA FERAFHEZEENTR
BBOBER IO ERIT

E-

WE - BEL&E(KRELEE
REFEIMFTERDE K
FEh&EHEEB & HMGE
ERFHRNREREERS
HER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

EREHBEE)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) M¥E -BERZEE

(Continued)
(iiij) Depreciation (Continued)

(iii) #7E (%)

No depreciation is provided for assets
under construction until such time
as the relevant assets are completed
and available for intended use. Assets
under construction are transferred to
relevant category of property, plant and
equipment upon the completion of their
respective construction.

Major  generator equipment  which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process is depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment,

EREEREREAEHRT
REmMAEHRITE K
CHEBREHENYME  BE
KEEER -

BHRBENREENEETF
HEANRAEEREBEERAS
MBHEENERERRZ
BERRGER S HFENTE
HEA - RE2ELXHHNE

since this most closely reflects the HESITE -
expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in
the asset.
The estimated useful lives and expected FARLEBEFEMNMGEER
production volume for the current and FHRBHESWT
comparative years are as follows:
Buildings and plants 30 years BFRBE 304
Major generator 80,000~ REEER 80,000&
equipment 120,000 hours 120,000/
Other machinery 5-32 years H bk 25 5ZE324F
Motor vehicles, E R
furniture, fixtures, KE RER
equipment and others 5-10 years Hh 5210%F

Depreciation methods, useful lives,
expected production volume and
residual values are reassessed at
each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHXE
(Continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) M¥E -BERZKEE)
(Continued)
(iv) Assets under construction (iv] GEZEE
Assets under construction represent EREETEREBFEINE
primarily buildings and plants and DA K #23 R 5 48 - 1R A A 0
machinery and equipment, which Br RETREE 18 (R K EE2()
are stated at cost less accumulated R - ABREEERRZR
impairment losses (see note 2(j)). Cost WHBHBENFEEEZENRAR -

includes all direct costs relating to
the construction of the assets and

acquisition.
(h) Lease prepayments (hy ENSES
Lease prepayments in the consolidated REMBRAROENESEIN
statement of financial position represent THEBRFEEN T EREE
cost of land use rights paid to the PRC’s R AR RET S RO EEE
governmental authorities. Lease prepayments (RMsE20) AR - BIEIZE B E
are carried at cost less accumulated REFERERRAREEZNE -

amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(j)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the rights.

() Inventories (i) #E
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and GFEURAL IR FEIRESR
net realisable value. HIER ©
The cost of inventories is calculated using FERAZEALHEZTE - 81
the first-in-first-out method and comprises all FIEREAAN  EBREARBEFE
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and BRI REBRMREMA -

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling AR FEEE S EBRAREROM
price in the ordinary course of business less EBRTEKEEMB MR R
the estimated costs of completion and the HEMBMETAAR -

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value
through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is impaired
if objective evidence indicates that a
loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the
loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets
(including equity securities) are impaired
can include default or delinquency by
a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, the disappearance
of an active market for a security. In
addition, for an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost is
objective evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for loans and receivables at
both a specific asset and collective level.
All individually significant receivables
are assessed for specific impairment.
All individually significant loans and
receivables found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans
and receivables that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together
loans and receivables with similar risk
characteristics.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

In assessing collective impairment the
Group wuses historical trends of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management’s judgement
as to whether current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or less
than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a
financial asset measured at amortised
cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected
in an allowance account against
receivables. Interest on the impaired
asset continues to be recognised
through the unwinding of the discount.
When a subsequent event causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease,
the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
non-financial assets, inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill, and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives
or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGU. Subject
to an operating segment ceiling test,
for the purposes of goodwill impairment
testing, CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated are aggregated so that
the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated
to groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASITHEE)
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE®E)

(i) Non-financial assets (Continued)

(i) H#EEEEE)

The Group’s corporate assets do not
generate separate cash inflows and
are utilised by more than one CGU.
Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs
on a reasonable and consistent basis
and tested for impairment as part of
the testing of the CGU to which the
corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment  losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwiill
is not reversed. In respect of the assets,
impairment losses recognised in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations
are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service
is provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Employee benefits (Continued)

0

(i) Defined contribution retirement
plan

Obligation for contributions to PRC
local government defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC and the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a
past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAREFHEHEM#SE
(Continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (m) KW=EBER
Provided it is probable that the economic W& EM=RATERAREE - B
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue B SR E W KA (EA) -
and costs, if applicable, can be measured Bl e THEERIBRER
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:
(i) Sales of electricity (i) HEEZY
Revenue from sales of electricity is HEBEHNKWSERFBGXES
recognised upon the transmission FEXZEFERAAITHBEN
of electric power to the power grid HAEETEEEE  NE
companies, as determined based on the BXEERRAIEER -

volume of electric power transmitted and
the applicable fixed tariff rates agreed
with the respective electric power grid
companies periodically.

(i) Government grants (i) BT A

Government grants are recognised fir) Al & B4R 38 N & & B LR
initially as deferred income when there BFMmB B A BB
is reasonable assurance that they will B & - B BUAT # AL & SRR
be received and that the Group will RAEREILEWA - HEEARER
comply with the conditions associated FIpMY 2B N ERMER
with the grant. Grants that compensate AR —HME RS E
the Group for expenses incurred EmnER HAEEESR
are recognised in profit or loss on a BERAZ@BHREENRE
systematic basis in the same periods RERHANEBE RO B R E
in which the expenses are recognised. e

Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the asset.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using
the effective interest method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense
on borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses. All borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss or capitalised using
the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the
same periods as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each reporting date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognized when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

2

REFTBEER#)

(p) FREBL(E)

THREERAEE R A EE 5K
BISMEREIE : BBEEQT AN
BENESR CUSERATEY
S EL LIS T8
P —BHMAERAE  RA
WRANBLNNESEE - M
BRREZEMNS - AEETES 2
EREE A EMEREA T
ARMRTRBE TR A B
EME - BEAMEEETEET
R REE -

EAETEHENEERBEEE R

X BRBEEEHERXERER
MREFE - RERBREERAE
THERRER -

REFRSHHARTELEHAEERN
REE TEXREHIERARHE
AR A B AR R B EERFL
IR o iR 2K F] BE B J2 S B AR Bt
A - Bl & B B % F R, o

&3 BE B B BN S A R R
BERARBNXNEERER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(q) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset are being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted
earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial
statements, parties are considered to be
related to the Group if:

() The party has the ability, directly
or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) The Group and the party are subject to
common control;
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Related parties (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The party is an associate of the Group
or a jointly controlled entity in which the
Group is a venturer;

The party is a member of key
management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

The party is a close family member of
a party referred to in () or is an entity
under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;
or

The party is a post-employment
benefit plan which is for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected

to

influence, or be influenced by, that

individual in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 3 % It 2T

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued two revised IFRSs, a
number of amendments to IFRSs and one new
Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant
to the Group’s financial statements:

° IFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

° Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements

° Amendments to IFRS 5, Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations
— plan to sell the controlling interest in a
subsidiary

° Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The improvements to IFRSs (2009) have had no
material impact on the Group’s financial statements
as the improvements were consistent with
policies already adopted by the Group. The other
developments resulted in changes in accounting
policy but none of these changes in policy have
a material impact on the current or comparative
periods, for the following reasons:

o The impact of the majority of the revisions to
IFRS 3 and the amendments to IAS 27 and
IFRS 5 have not yet had a material effect on
the Group’s financial statements as these
changes will first be effective as and when
the Group enters into a relevant transaction
(for example, a business combination)
and there is no requirement to restate the
amounts recorded in respect of previous such
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The impact of the amendments to IFRS
3 (in respect of recognition of acquiree’s
deferred tax assets) and IAS 27 (in respect of
allocation of losses to non-controlling interests
(previously known as minority interests) in
excess of their equity interest) have had no
material impact as there is no requirement to
restate amounts recorded in previous periods
and no such deferred tax assets or losses
arose in the current period.

Further details of these changes in accounting
policy are as follows:

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised
2008), any business combination acquired on
or after 1 January 2010 will be recognised in
accordance with the new requirements and
detailed guidance contained in IFRS 3 (revised
2008). These include the following changes in
accounting policies:

— Transaction costs that the Group
incurs in connection with a business
combination, such as finder's fees,
legal fees, due diligence fees, and
other professional and consulting fees,
will be expensed as incurred, whereas
previously they were accounted for
as part of the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

— If the Group holds interests in the
acquiree immediately prior to obtaining
control, these interests will be treated
as if disposed of and re-acquired at fair
value on the date of obtaining control.
Previously, the step-up approach would
have been applied, whereby goodwill
was computed as if accumulated at
each stage of the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contingent  consideration  will  be
measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes in the
measurement of that contingent
consideration unrelated to facts and
circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date will be recognised
in profit or loss, whereas previously
these changes were recognised as an
adjustment to the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax
losses or other temporary deductible
differences and these fail to meet the
recognition criteria for deferred tax
assets at the date of acquisition, then
any subsequent recognition of these
assets will be recognised in profit or loss,
rather than as an adjustment to goodwill
as was previously the policy.

In addition to the Group’s existing
policy of measuring the non-controlling
interests  (previously known as the
“minority interests”) in the acquiree at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets, in future the Group may elect,
on a transaction by transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interest at
fair value.

B BREE#)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In  accordance with the transitional
provisions in IFRS 3 (revised 2008), these
new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to any business combinations in
the current or future periods. The new policy
in respect of recognition in the movement
of deferred tax assets will also be applied
prospectively to accumulated tax losses
and other temporary deductible differences
acquired in previous business combinations.
No adjustments have been made to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that
arose from business combinations whose
acquisition dates preceded the application of
this revised standard.

As a result of the adoption of IAS 27
(amended 2008), the following changes in
policies will be applied as from 1 January
2010:

— If the Group acquires an additional
interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with
equity shareholders (the non-controlling
interests) in their capacity as owners and
therefore no goodwill will be recognised
as a result of such transactions.
Similarly, if the Group disposes of part
of its interest in a subsidiary but still
retains control, this transaction will
also be accounted for as a transaction
with equity shareholders (the non-
controlling interests) in their capacity
as owners and therefore no profit or
loss will be recognised as a result of
such transactions. Previously the Group
treated such transactions as step-
up transactions and partial disposals,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the transaction will be accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with any remaining
interest retained by the Group being
recognised at fair value as if reacquired.
In addition, as a result of the adoption
of the amendment to IFRS 5, if at the
end of reporting period the Group has
the intention to dispose of a controlling
interest in a subsidiary, the entire interest
in that subsidiary will be classified as
held for sale (assuming that the held
for sale criteria in IFRS 5 are met)
irrespective of the extent to which the
Group will retain an interest. Previously
such transactions were treated as partial
disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions
in IAS 27, these new accounting policies
will be applied prospectively to transactions
in current or future periods and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

B BREE#)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 BIHEEEE)
(Continued)
Other changes in accounting policies which are EAEFBRREBE @t REEM
relevant to the Group’s financial statements are as sER
follows:

As a result of the amendments to IAS 27, as
from 1 January 2010 any losses incurred by a
non-wholly owned subsidiary will be allocated
between the controlling and non-controlling
interests in proportion to their interests in that
entity, even if this results in a deficit balance
within consolidated equity being attributed
to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if
the allocation of losses to the non-controlling
interests would have resulted in a deficit
balance, the losses were only allocated to the
non-controlling interests if the non-controlling
interests were under a binding obligation
to make good the losses. In accordance

BRI R & 5t ERIE 275 (12
AIAN) BT —FF—-F—H
B eENBARELE ZEME
BRERNZERE 2R p -
Wi EIFE RS 2 A D
B IR @ RN G ERENIE
R B 2 BMAEER o ATE
i JE5 48 2 Fic 22 FR 2 AR A 2 48 BUBS At
B REBRESHFERESS
MRNEEREZSEERTED
FCEJFIEfiE s - IRIBER £
RIS 275 2 BIRIRI - AR
RILFELER  RUAEHERT
75 -

with the transitional provisions in IAS 27,
this new accounting policy is being applied
prospectively and therefore previous periods
have not been restated.

4  TURNOVER 4 EHEH
The principal activities of the Group are the REEMTIBEEKAESR KENERE
development, operation and management of power B °
plants.

Turnover represents revenue from the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

LEBPENEBLARHEEET ool -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(i) Net finance costs

KR %% A% A
% 7 Al i

1B 0k (GFA)

() PAERAFEE
2010 2009

—z-=z+ LIRS
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLESE \R%TT

Interest expenses FEMAX 41,723
Net foreign exchange loss SNEBEFRE 247
Bank charges RITE M 679
Financial expenses_ ________MBEM __________ 42,649 IENNRCER:E
Net foreign exchange gain HNVE W 2= F B8
Interest income FB2 A (2,519)
Financial income —§ mBEBA (2,519) NCECAVE
Net finance costs B %5 X AN BR 40,130
(i) Personnel costs (i) BEIRAE
2010 2009
Al —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T NG R
Wages, salaries and other benefits ¥4 ~ L& & Hith 18 7 20,684 14,566
Contribution to defined contribution 5 & it 7% 5 21 &9 7%
plan 974 822
21,658 15,388
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

BR B AT R (42)
(i) BIRAEH)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) o)

(ii) Personnel costs (Continued)

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government. According
to the respective pension fund regulations, the
Group is required to pay annual contributions
for the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009. The Group remits all the pension
fund contributions to the respective social
security offices, which are responsible for
the payments and liabilities relating to the
pension funds. The Group has no obligation
for payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

defined

The Group also operates a

REBEL2EPBEBFLERNRKE
&  BESERKESHRTE  A5EH
BRBE_ZT—ZFR_ZTZTNEF
+—A=Z=+—BULFEEFHRK -
AEBRSHRNEEILFMER
REHEFR - T B AL AR % 25 5 JE AE
BERESHBENNREREE - B E
RN AEBIE AR B RIK
REMBRAREBRBATROEL -

ZN-E W)Y i3 LR N N A i TR TS

contribution  Mandatory ~ Provident  Fund Bl - BARAIRNBAREANEZERE
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF BRI EREMETES TR ERIK

Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

wBAET B (TEEeatEl]) - H3iR
BEEAFEADLIEL - AR
FEREEEGRRAINTEER
BEGENEG - BESFENEER
BUYEEESRE HAKEEE
DRFAE - ARENEEHRNE
ABEDHEAREHEEEERES -

(iii) Other items (iii) EEE
2010 2009
- By 28 _—_TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
INGL-B A ARETT
Amortisation #H 825 831
Depreciation e 46,836 36,727
Auditor’s remuneration ¥ 25 B B &
— audit services — R 1,183 1,383
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OTHER NET INCOME 6 HMWAFHE
2010 2009
=il —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T N R
Government grants B8R 8 B 854 2,234
Others H A 500 —
Total HER 1,354 2,234
The Group was awarded unconditional government AEBHEZE T ZF+_-_A=+—
grants amounting to RMB854,000 for the year BEtFEEEKGBRTMM AR
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB2,234,000). 854000 T(ZZFEZTNLF : ARK
2,234,0007T) °
All government grants were given as a recognition FIERNEM R AEBHEMESR
of the Group’s contribution to the development of BRABRMAORA
the local industry.
INCOME TAX 7 AWM
() Income tax in the consolidated statement () ZKEZEBABRRANFAEHR
of comprehensive income represents: 1
2010 2009
=il —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T IR
Current tax B HA ¥ 18
PRC corporate income tax EP l PESH 5,150 2,080
Income tax credit BiHE R (5,150) (2,080)
Deferred tax IE B8
Origination of temporary EREBRNESE
differences
— Dividend withholding tax — R ETEHH —
Total income tax expense FAEEZEKRARKAN
in the consolidated statement gt %

of comprehensive income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

7

INCOME TAX (Continued)

0

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive

income represents:

(Continued)

(@)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman lIslands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made for the subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong as these
subsidiaries did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The provision for PRC income tax is
based on the respective corporate
income tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary
Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (“New Tax Law”) which took
effect on 1 January 2008. According
to the New Tax Law, the applicable
tax rates of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are unified at 25% with effect
from 1 January 2008. Pursuant to the
transitional arrangement under the New
Tax Law, the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC will continue to enjoy tax holiday
of tax-exemption for two years followed
by 50% reduction on the applicable
income tax rate for three years that
were previously granted prior to the
enactment of the New Tax Law, and
thereafter they are subject to the unified
rate of 25%.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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7 INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 FREBLE)
() Income tax in the consolidated statement () ZEZEBABRRANAEHR
of comprehensive income represents: ¥ (&)

(Continued)

(c) (Continued) () (#&)

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, 5% BREBEFHE IEBKREER
withholding tax is levied on the RIFREEER_ZFZEN
foreign investor in respect of dividend F—A—BUEMABEIUEF
distributions arising from a foreign EENRE D IKIZHEX5%
investment enterprise’s profit earned BMBENR - ERAEEF
after 1 January 2008. Deferred tax WEBAREBE_T—%F
liabilities of RMB2,141,000 have been TZA=+—HBLEFEMR
recognised for the profits earned by the B aMNERELERIEAE
Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the year AR #2141,0007T °

ended 31 December 2010.

(d) Pursuant to the relevant PRC tax law 0 WEHPEMBEETERER
and regulations, the Group was granted REBR _ZT—ZFHEE
an income tax credit of RMB5,150,000 EXEXBEMERSGEHER
for purchases of domestic equipment AR¥5150,000c (ZZEZT A
for production in 2010 (2009: F : AR#2080,0007T) °
RMB2,080,000).

(i) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) REABERFENB EREXES
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: FHEFIEER -
2010 2009
- 228 —_TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥ T N R
Profit before taxation B %% A1 & 43,056 21,567
Notional tax on profit before BR 5 A S A 2 i AT R IE -
taxation, calculated at 25% R E2E%TH 10,764 5,392
Effect of different tax rates MEBAREAZ TR X
applicable to subsidiaries op-2+ (6,555) (3,120)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR MBI AR GERH
expenses/(non-taxable income) WAz BETE 941 (192)
Income tax credit Frig ik & (5,150) (2,080)
Withholding tax on profits retained Bl fff B A &) (R & %5 Fl
by PRC subsidiaries TE I8 2,141 —

2,141 =
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B 7% ¥ 7= MY

7 INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 FRER(E)
(iii) Tax recoverable in the consolidated statement (iii) #RE AR R P HY AT U B FH1E
of financial position represents: 1

Balance at beginning of the year — 4F ¥ 45 &

Provision for income tax FNFTIS R
for the year

Entitlement to income tax credit FRMEMSHIE R
for the year”

Income tax (paid)/received FAE (B WABEH
during the year

Balance at the end of the year F IR

W

This represents tax credit relating to the purchases of
domestic equipment for production (see note 7(i)(d)).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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2010 2009
AL —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T N
(3,132) (3,504)
5,150 2,080
(5,150) (2,080)
(243) 372

(3,375) (3,132)

EEHEEEELERENESHRE
e (B EET7()d) °



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEMS

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BEFEEARKAIEICIHEENES
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as T

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-E-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses contributions
e
BHR EIK
EZNHE /B B 15764 B REE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%BTn AR%TR AR%TR AR%¥Trn

Executive directors
Mr. Chai Wei
Mr. Hu Xianwei

Non-executive
directors

Mr. Feng Limin

Mr. Ding Guangping

Independent non-
executive directors

Mr. Zhang Shoulin

Mr. Tse Chi Man

Mr. Yao Xianguo

HITES
REXE
HEEEE
FUTES

BURSE
THFsE

BYFHTES
RTHELE

MEXRE
BkEBELAE
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(#)

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE_FENET-A=T-ALER

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
AR AN
Yok BN &= 115 TE AL BE KT st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETRT ARBTRE ARBTR

Executive directors  #H{TEZE

Mr. Chai Wei LEhs - 660 - 19 679
Mr. Hu Xianwei HEREAE - 300 - 18 318
Non-executive EHTES

directors
Mr. Feng Limin BUREE - - - - -

Mr. Ding Guangping THEEE - = = = -

Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Zhang Shoulin RFMEE 79 - - - 79
Mr. Tse Chi Man #EX KA 79 - - - 79
Mr. Yao Xianguo #AEBEE 79 - - - 79
237 960 — 37 1,234
An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the REZSASEMeHEE S NEZHE
number of directors and remuneration range is as DT
follows:
2010 2009
= P 2 _—_TTHF
Number of Number of
directors directors
EEAH BEEAH
Nil to HKD1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 7
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(#)

There were no amounts paid to directors in HE-_Z-—ZSFER_ZEZTALF+ A
connection with their retirement from employment =+ —HLEFE AEESEAESRE
with the Group, or inducement to join for the years BefEANBEREENEBMINTE
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009. There was EEMNRIE - PEFLEMEEFHRES
no arrangement under which a director waived or RIEMEEMMESHIZHE -

agreed to waive any remuneration for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EEHAZL

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, AEBREEeHALTH EFPRSEZ
two (2009: two) are directors whose emoluments (ZZ2EZENF : MB)REE  KEW
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the MeBEBERMEFs  HM =2 (ZZEZ
emoluments in respect of the other three (2009: F:=ZZ)ATHHESBRELOT :

three) individuals are as follows:

2010 2009

S il == %
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLESE \R%TR

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  HFaekHEMEF 1,480 902
Contribution to defined contribution & 48 ft Zx &t 24 3%

plan 63 51

953

Number of senior management SRERABHEE 3
The above individual’s emoluments are within the FRALTZZT—"ZFHHENTEZ
band of Nil to HKD1,000,000 in 2010 (2009: Nil to 21,000,000 T(ZEZNF : T2
HKD1,000,000). 1,000,000/ 7T ) °
There were no amounts paid to the five highest HE-Z—ZFK=_FTFTNF+=A
paid employees in connection with their retirement =+—HLEEE FAEEHSERRAEE
from employment with the Group, or inducement S EEEBIIEANMBEARASENRZE
to join for the years ended 31 December 2010 and i A & SRR FRE -
20009.
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B 7% ¥ 7= MY

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
RMB4,877,000 (2009: RMB1,926,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to

Company’s profit for the year:

WREIE

the

Amount of consolidated profit
attributable to equity shareholders
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements

Dividends from subsidiaries
attributable to the profit
of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

Dividends from subsidiaries
attributable to the profit
of the current financial year,
approved during the year

PN X A B 755 ¥R 3R BR FE Y
BaBB ARGERS
i M & 7R

E—MBRFERRMELD
MERRKE  RER
#t A MO A

R F 2 F E A
MBARRE  RFRA
i3

The Company'’s profit for the year
(note 23(a))

A E)F AE R (K 5E23(a))

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

ARrERFEEAEMG
R#4877,000t(ZEZHE : AR
1,926,0007C) K &1 © E A D B B 7%

2010
—e-%f
RMB’000
ARETF T

(4,877)

10 ARBIREFE ARG EF

RAE A eEA

bt RE BN ) s A B BB

2009
—EENF
RMB’000
AREFT

(1,926)

16,764

14,838



11

12

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effect relating to each component of
other comprehensive income

Before-tax
amount

BREASE
RMB’000
ARETR
Foreign currency translation NEBIEBESR
differences for foreign =%
operations (3,387)
Other comprehensive income ~ E 2 AU A (3,387)

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB40,915,000 (2009:
RMB21,567,000) and the weighted average of
415,000,000 ordinary shares (2009: 354,273,973)
in issue during the year.

11

2010
—g-%%
Tax
(expense)/
benefit
A
(%)
RMB’000
AR®T TR

H ity 2 E YA
Htt2HBRASERBINB AL E

2009
—TENE

Tax
\EEOBEVE  Before-tax — (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount amount benefit amount

M

(Rx)/
BRizeE NodkE: BE RiksE®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
NS \RETT AREBTT ARETR

(3,387) (45) = (45)
(3,387) (45) - (45)
BREAREBERA

BEREABIZFRAARRESZFTEA
FE(G3% A A R #40,915,000C( ZEZE N,
F: AR¥21,567,00070) & B 3 17H
B A% HY N A S 15 81415,000,0000% ( — =
TR 354,273,973/ )5t E o

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 =Z—ZFEHRE

107



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER 12 BREARREBERR &)
SHARE (Continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares MELHEBREE

2010 2009
AL —TTNF
Number of Number of

shares shares

B4 BB B 88

Share issued at 1 January R—HA—BEITHRM5

(note 23(0)(i)) (B 2 23(0)()) 415,000,000 1
Issuance of new shares upon EAFEITHR

the Reorganisation (note 23(b)(i)) (P9 5E23(0)()) 3
Capitalisation issue (note 23(b)(ii) & ANk 2 17 (M 5E23(0)(ii)) 299,999,996
Effect of issuance of shares by BERNEERBERES

share offer and over-allocation BITRODOTE

(note 23(o)(ii)) (Bt 2E23(0) i) 54,073,973
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ = A=+ — B it

shares at 31 December T EBREE EREOOLIGOOE 354,273,973
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares RERFE  WEABESEFENE
throughout the years, and therefore, the basic and AR - WEREARBEEZMNER -

diluted earnings per share are the same.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

13 SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of power
plants.

The most senior executive management have
identified three operating segments, which are
the three power plants, namely Zhejiang De-Neng
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”), Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing Power
Plant”) and Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd., originally named
Hangzhou Blue Sky Natural Gas Power Generation
Co., Ltd., (“Blue Sky Power Plant”). The most senior
executive management are of the view that these
three operating segments contribute to the entire
revenue of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group, power
segment, for financial reporting purpose as they
have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of nature of products, production
processes, the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, accruals and bills payable
attributable to sales activities of the power segment
and bank borrowings managed directly by the
power segment, with the exception of corporate
expense payables.

13

okt

SE g
E’\JIE%?}%E@ RERER

&S O

% >HHF

ERTBREREREA=ELEDH

BT TRERARBEEARAAURE
‘H‘E?EJFEJ) MTIRIBRBRAREE
~AR(TREBEER]) RMMIRIBERXR

%%ﬁ?&%ﬁfﬁ a (AT m N B XK
%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ AEXRER) =R
EW - WmEMBHRER x5 THER
ERSHERZ=-EZ2EsHELEAEH
e - MAKERFHES Eu:'nl‘i

B LEBRRE BFPEEANMEER
i MEAHRE—Z2®/NHM — %
N3 ER e

DHEEBREMBEELEE - BVEE
ERBEE HEITBREMEXEE -
DHABEBREENESFE -EHHH
HERPELNEFERRENREIN
NEERENDMERNRITEE @ 1

TEERNEERX -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 D EH/E (&)
() Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) EHRIMBEEE BN BEK
turnover, profit, assets and liabilities EEHER
Turnover 3]

2010 2009
= Ed —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T & NS R

Reportable segment turnover EmMOBEER 654,315 396,229

Consolidated turnover AR ER 654,315 396,229
Profit )& A

2010 2009

=il —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T NG R

Reportable segment profit E2WH HmF 54,250 25,840

Unallocated corporate expenses ~ T~ B 25 X (11,194) (4,273)

Consolidated profit before taxation [k %4 Al 47 & & 43,056 21,567
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 D EWE (&)
() Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) EHIMBEEE BN BEK
turnover, profit, assets and liabilities EEYHERE)
(Continued)
Assets BE

2010
—e-%%
RMB’000
ARMBT R

1,120,702
104,246

Reportable segment assets EWRDHMEE
Other corporate assets EMmEEE
Consolidated total assets REEERE

1,224,948

Liabilities

=Y
2010
—e-®F
RMB’000
AR®TR

Reportable segment liabilities
Corporate expense payables

EHmHMAE

B BRI X

726,204
6,533

Consolidated total liabilities

e BEAE

732,737

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 =Z—ZFEHRE

2009
—EENF
RMB’000
AREFIT

1,069,226
116,713

1,185,939

2009
—ETNF
RMB’000
ARBEFIT

723,951
1,099

725,050
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

14 Y% BERKZE

The Group &
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Major fixtures, Assets
Buildings generator Other  equipment under
and plants equipment machinery  and others construction Total
AE -
HERER
BEREE AARERRE Hitii 28 Hitr EREE o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTn ARETn AR®Tr AR®Tn ARETx
Cost B
At 1 January 2009 ZZENE-A-H 96,225 716,341 171,596 12,270 1,440 997,872
Additions NE 2,634 393 215 797 1,775 5814
Transfer from assets under BRATREE
construction 331 851 21 — (1,203) —
At 31 December 2009 3
+-A=+-H 99,190 717,585 171,832 13,067 2,012 1,003,686
Additions NE 3,133 43 628 1,845 6,634 12,283
Transfer from assets under HRATREE
construction 68 3,433 829 - (4,330) -
Disposals HE - - - (1,508) — (1,508)
At 31 December 2010 “T-%F
TZA=+-H 102,391 721,061 173,289 1,014,461
Accumulated depreciation R MERAESE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2009 ZZENFE-A-H (9,550 (84,437) (29,229) (5,060) — (128,276)
Charge for the year FNEH (3,865) (20,099) (10,677) (2,086) = (36,727)
At 31 December 2009 ZZENEF
+-ZB=+-H (13,415) (104,536) (39,906) (7,146) = (165,009)
Charge for the year ERER (3,884) (29,950) (10,740) (2,262) = (46,836)
Written back on disposals HERD - - - 1,023 — 1,023
At 31 December 2010 —Z-2F
+-ZB=+-H (17,299) (134,486) (50,646) (8,385) (210,816)
Carrying amounts BHE
At 31 December 2010 —T-%F
+-A=+-A 586,575 122,643 803,645
At 31 December 2009 ZZENE
+-A=+-H 85,775 613,049 131,926 5,921 2,012 838,683
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

)

(i)

(i)

All of the property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2010, certain property,
plant and equipment with the carrying
amounts of RMB671,647,000 were
pledged as collateral for bank loans (2009:
RMB701,796,000) (see note 20(i)).

The refund of VAT on purchases of
depreciable assets has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the relevant assets.
The amount is transferred to income in the
form of reduced depreciation charges over the
useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy
has resulted in a reduction of depreciation
charges by approximately RMB2,226,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB1,577,000). As at 31 December 2010,
an amount of approximately RMB47,433,000
remains to be amortised (2009:
RMB49,659,000).

14 YE BERRKESE)

EEE)

(i)

AEBBEENME  BFE R&ES
R -

RZZE—ZFF+-_A=+—H "' K
HmEAAREG71,647,000C(=F
THE : ARM701,796,0007T) HY
ETYE  BEREECIEART
B R (R M sE200)) °

BEAMEEENEAETRERHDE
BEBEEREENR %28
REBEERFERBFTFHRNELRT
EEZRARLEREZ GG - WK
SEHE_E—ZEF+_A=+—
AEFEZHEEARBRIHOAR
#2 226,000 (ZEFENF : AR
¥&1,677,0007L) + MR ZZE—ZTF
+_A=+—HB EHARE
47,433,000 (ZEZENF : AR
#49,659,0007C) M EEITE B
)EH °
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15 LEASE PREPAYMENTS
The Group

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 FEfMHEE
rEHE

Cost:

At 1 January 2009 and

e

R_ZBTAF—H—B K

_ 81 December2009 _ _ _ _ ____ ___ SRR AR .. 84,661
At 1 January 2010 R—ZE—ZFF—HF—H 34,661
Disposals & (1,752)
At 81 December 2010 _ __ _ _ __ _I RoBBEYZA=ZT R ____ 82,909
Accumulated amortisation ERR

At 1 January 2009 R_ZEENF—H—H (2,934)
Charge for the year FRNEH (831)
AUSL DesenoerAuyy REBENFA AT R _____B765
At 1 January 2010 R—ZZE—ZFTF—H—H (3,765)
Charge for the year FRNER (8295)
Written back on disposals & B [ 164
At 31 December 2010_ _ _ _ _ _ __ _I KRB BFEVZAZT R _____________44209)
Carrying amounts EEEE

At 31 December 2010 R_ZE-—TF+_H=+—~8H 28,483
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=_A=+—8H 30,896

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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15 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 15 FAEfdHE &)
The Group (Continued) KEE(E)
()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land () TENHEEERTDEEHAOESQE
use rights in respect of land located in the WHRELHERENER -
PRC with a lease period of 30-50 years when
granted.
(i) All land use rights were pledged as collateral i) RZZEENFR_ZZE—ZTF+=
for bank loans at 31 December 2009 and A=+T—HB®0mELHMERAED
2010 (see note 20(i)). D RMERIRITE KA E IR (R M &F
20()) °
16 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RENE Q7

The Company
AT
2010 2009
Sy —TTaf
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARBTT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG  BERAEE 358,044 358,044
The following list only shows the particulars of TREZVNFEFZEARAGEESE - BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, FBEZMBARMNFE - 5 EEH
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of SN FTERMER AT AR -

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place and date = Percentage of Issued and fully
of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/registered Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation to the Company capital activities
B/ 5
R AATRELRE BRTRAR
ACIEE: oY =E A BOW AMER  FEXEK
Direct Indirect
Hi )

Amber Bluesky Hong Kong 100% = HKD10,001/  Investment
(HK) Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Bluesky”)

RMEX(BS) EB  100% — 1000187,/ REER
BERAT —ETNF 20,0007 7T
(MRMEX]) ANAZ+NH
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

16 BREMB AR (#)

Percentage of

Issued and fully

of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/registered Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation to the Company capital activities
B/ 5 R
wER FRRELRE BRITRBE
NEIEE it = =R Bok dMER FEXK
Direct Indirect
B A

Amber Jingxing Hong Kong 100% = HKD10,001/  Investment
(HK) Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Jingxing”)

RIRE(RE) &%  100% — 10,0018,/ HREER
BRAT] —TENE 20,0007 7T
(TEmmE]) NAZ+AH

Amber Deneng Hong Kong 100% = HKD10,001/  Investment
(HK) Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Deneng”)

RIEE(BH) &  100% — 1000187/ REER
BRAA e A2 20,0007 7T
(MEmEEeel) NBZTNH

Amber Anji (HK) Hong Kong 100% —  HKD1/HKD10,000  Investment
Limited 2 September 2008 holding

®INL&E(FE) EE  100% — 1%87;x,/100008 T HREZR
BRAA —ETNE

AAZH
Blue Sky Power Plant 0] The PRC — 100% USD17,171,400/ Power
15 December UsSD17,171,400 generation
2004
EXER (i a2 —  100% 17,171,400% 7T,/ BE
—TTWMF 17,171,400% 7T
+ZA+HH

Jing-Xing Power Plant (ii) The PRC — 100% USD16,660,000/ Power

6 January 2005 USD16,660,000 generation

REE R (il F —  100% 16,660,000% 7T,/ %E

—ETREF 16,660,0003 7T
—HAH
De-Neng Power Plant (iii) The PRC — 100% USD18,408,710/ Power
18 August 2004 USD18,408,710  generation
EEER (i) w —  100% 18,408,710% 7,/ B%E
—TTWEF 18,408,710% 7T
NA+NH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Blue Sky Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino-
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise on 25 July 2008.

(if) Jing-Xing Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino-
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign-

owned enterprise on 5 September 2006.

(ii) De-Neng Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino-
foreign equity joint venture.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The

=

2010

—E-BF

RMB’000

AR® Tt

Trade receivables FEUWE B IE 61,418
Amounts due FE UK B A A

from subsidiaries KIE —

Prepayments TEf FRIE 5,949

Non-trade receivables  fE W IEE 5 K IB 5,706

73,073

All of the trade and other receivables are expected
to be recovered within one year. Credit term
granted to power grid companies is 30 days.

16 REMB RSB &)
B & -

i) EXEBRARTEKINFIEEDLE N
Z2ENFLA-THERRINEBELE -

BEHANTREKINOPIIEGELE N

(ii) g
TTANFNATABRBIEBECE -

@iy EEEBARTEKILIAPINEGELE -

17 EWE SR HEMAKIE

Group The Company
58 QT
2009 2010 2009
—zzhf EEEREEN —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PNGEEw ARETT

45,360 30,300

276 55

34,456 45,636 30,355

PrERIWE 5 K EMKRIBBRB AN —F
Mm@ - EH R EXIOKREEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥ 7= MY

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables of the
Group is as follows:

17 BWE Z K EMRE )

AEERKESFRENREDTOT

Within 1 month —{E AR

18 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Pledged deposits can be analysed as follows:

Guarantee deposits for issuance
of commercial bills and
banking facilities

BITEERER
RITEENREER

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
Al —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
WL ETA AR%F
61,418 16,291
18 2HEHEFER
EEBERONET
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
sl —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
L ETH ARETT
132,513 89,500

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All the balances of cash and cash equivalents as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are cash at banks
and on hand.

118 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20 FTEEE
The Group
K&
2010 2009
Sl —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt NG =
Current B H#A
Secured bank loans BEMAEITER 14,000 =
Unsecured bank loans | FRITE K 180,000 190,000
Current portion of non-current JERNEI B HMIBITE XY
secured bank loans Bl HB &6 19 25,060 25,000
Current portion of non-current JERNHAEE A IRITE RN
unsecured bank loans BN HA B 19 19,940 20,000
______________________________________ 239,000 e _2(25_,0_09 i
Non-current I BN HA
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 212,200 279,560
Unsecured bank loans E|ILFRITER 35,500 65,440
______________________________________ 247,700 L ?{5_,0_09 i
486,700 580,000
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B 755 i 2= BT A

20 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20 sTEEBE &)

(Continued)

()  The secured bank loans as at 31 December ) ZZE—FTF+_A=+—8BH
2010 carried interest at rates ranging from EEBIBITERZFENE510%
5.10% to 5.94% (2009: 5.76% to 5.94%) per E594%(ZZEZE NF 5.76%%
annum and were secured by the following 5.94%) 5T B - WA TFIEEHKR
assets:

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
=2 28 _—TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
INL-BP A AR¥ T

Carrying amounts of assets: EER@TAE
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - B &= & & 671,647 701,796
Lease prepayments EEE 28,483 30,896
Pledged deposits BEEBFR 15,000 =
(i)  Unsecured bank loans as at 31 December i) —ZFE—FTF+_A=+—8BH
2010 carried interest at rates ranging from PR ITE RIZF N E4.86%
4.86% to 6.39% (2009: 5.10% to 5.94%) per Z639%(Z T AF  5.10%%
annum. 5.94%) &t B °
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20 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 20 irEEBE#)
(Continued)
(i) The Group’s non-current bank loans were (i) ANEEIFERHIIRITE A E KA
repayable as follows: T
The Group

AEm
2010 2009
—z-=7 LR
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLESA \R%TR

Within Tyear __ _ __ ________ . 45,000 R ETOv
Over 1 year but less than 2 years MR —FEMFEN 172,700 215,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BB@EMFEAFR 75,000 130,000
___________________________________ 247,700 L ?{5_,0_09 i

292,700 390,000

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 EHEZREMKIE
The Group The Company
rxE b NN

2010 2009 2010 2009
ALl TThAE il  TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L B AKX TT NSRRI AKX T

Trade and bill payables &8 5 K 1E &

JE T R % 202,247 105,344 —
Amount due FET BB & A
to subsidiaries RIB 9,421
Non-trade payables and FEfI3EE 5
accrued expenses RIE K FEET
(see note 22) X (fF 5E22) 19,351 119
221,598 9,540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21 ENEZKHMMRIAE)
An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the AEERENEZREREMNEREZ RER
Group is as follows: ST :
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
=t N _—_TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T PN

Within 3 months =—@ANR 64,296 57,112
Over 3 months but less than 6 months #R i@ =1{& A8 ~{@ A " 137,951 48,232
202,247 105,344
22 LONG-TERM PAYABLES 22 REAFEMFRIE
The Group
K&

2010 2009
—g-z¢ LU
RMB’000 RMB’000
NI =uTx

Payable for purchase of property, BEWE BEX

plant and equipment % 15 B FE 1 R IR 25,744
The balance represents payable for the purchase RHRRBEEOREREBNENKIEA
of an imported generator equipment. The ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%o 448,0007T -
nominal value of the purchase consideration of BAR1I0FANE ZeBEEATE
RMB60,448,000 is payable over a period of 10 (B EEREBHNERFEFIRG
years. The amount has been measured at fair HRBReME)AE
value being future cash outflows discounted at
the prevailing interest rates as at the respective
reporting dates.
Current portion of long-term payables of FHEMNRENDNRALS, AR
RMB7,551,000 (2009: RMB7,125,000) has been 7551000 t(ZTEFE N F : AR®
included in non-trade payables and accrued 7,125,0007T) E st AJEI3EE S RIBE K&

expenses (see note 21). R (RMWE21) -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX-HBEEKRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) EHH2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBEHGEERSHODFVEER
closing balances of each component of the MR HEREHENGEEEREEX -
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the AAREREZBMHFNEFRZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. BEFREOAT :

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
The Company VNN
Retained
earnings/
Share Share  Contributed ~ Translation  (Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve loss) equity
RBEF/
BRA  KHEE BAR% EAREE (RAER) ERg®
Note ~ RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz ARSTr ARETRT ARETRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2009 R-2ZhE-A—A - - - - - -

Changes in equity for 2009: —EZNFHEEH :

Profit for the year F N5 = - - - 14,838 14,838
Other comprehensive Hit2EmHBA
income — = = (58) = (58)

Total comprehensive income N2 XA 4 5

for the year — — — (58) 14,838 14,780
Capital contribution iE 23(c)(ii)
© - - 21,385 - - 21,385
Arising from BlHEE
the Reorganisation 23(c)(iv) — - 358,044 — — 358,044
Issuance of shares BERMEEETRG
by share offer 23(b)(i) 8814 137,500 i - - 146,314
Issuance of shares BEBEEEETRG
by over-allocation 23(b)(iii) 1,322 20,629 - - - 21,951
Capitalisation issue BB 23(o)(i)/
23(c)(i) 26,446 (26,446) — — — —
Share issuance expenses B EITER - (38,959) - - = (38,959)
Dividends to equity EuiFEARE
shareholders 23(d) — — (21,385) - (6,803) (28,188)
At 31 December 2009 R=—ZZAE
+=ZA=+-A8 36,582 92,724 358,044 (58) 8,035 495,327
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX -fBERRE#)
(Continued)
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) EXHO2EE(E)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) DT\ (E)
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Contributed Translation (Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve loss)
REEF
BRAEA RORE SARR ERRE (RER)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
GEM ARETT ARSTn AR%TR AR¥TR AR%ETx
At 31 December 2009and RZ-ZEHE
1 January 2010 +=ZA=+-BR
—E-25-8-H 36,582 92,724 358,044
Changes in equity for 2010: —ZE—SFEEXEF :
Profit for the year F A& 11,012
Other comprehensive Hit2 @B
income (4,412)
Total comprehensive income  FER2ERALE
for the year (4,412) 11,012
Dividends to BaFAEARSE
equity shareholders 23(d) (6,206)
At 31 December 2010 R-Z2-%%
+=A=+-8 36,582 92,724 358,044 (4,470) 12,841

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A

Total

equity

HHAR
RMB’000

AR®T T

495,327

11,012

(4,412)

(6,206)

495,721
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX -REERBRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) B
The Group and the Company
AEMRADF

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTNF
No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares RMB’000 shares RMB’000
Note KX Gk
P et R4 & B AR TR R &8 ARSEF T

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of & % {E0.107 7T
HKDO.10 each )& A (J 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 88,050

Ordinary shares, B &{TR

issued and BREER
fully paid
At 1 January R—A—H 415,000,000 1 =

Issuance of new  BARFEITHR
shares upon the

Reorganisation (i) 3 —
Capitalisation BRI

issue (ii) 299,999,996 26,446
Issuance of shares 1R & [ 15 % &

by share offer  B{TRR{R (i) 100,000,000 8,814
Issuance of RIEHRERE

shares by BITR M

over-allocation (iii) 15,000,000 1,322
At 31 December W+ -_A=1+—8H 415,000,000 415,000,000 36,582
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

0)

(it

The Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 8 September
2008 with an authorised share capital
of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000
ordinary shares of par value HKDO0.10
each. On 8 September 2008, one
share was allotted and issued to the
initial subscriber and was subsequently
transferred to Amber International
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”) on the same date. On 20
March 2009, two shares were allotted
and issued to Amber International to
settle the consideration for the transfer
of Blue Sky Power Plant and Jing-Xing
Power Plant to Amber Bluesky and
Amber Jingxing respectively. On 11 June
2009, one share was allotted and issued
to Amber International to settle the
consideration for the transfer of De-Neng
Power Plant to Amber Deneng.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
then sole shareholder of the Company
on 18 June 2009, the authorised
share capital of the Company was
increased from HKD380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 ordinary shares
to HKD100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
then sole shareholder of the Company
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the
Company were issued at par value on
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the
share premium account.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

23

BX - fERRE )

(b) MA(#)

0)

ZEZENFNLANB AR
AIEREHSTMATL-
&Eh$%%mw%ﬁ’
7 /& 3,800,000 A% & % ® &
Qm%mmiﬁ%o Eges
NEALAENEB BEREA
%m%&%ﬁ—%%f'w
RERABZBRBEHERET
RIREREEESRA TG%
HEEE]) - —ETNAEFE=A
—+H ARAEREAEE
fee RBETRERRKRG  EA
MIRAERRFARESD 5
EEEREWMA R EE RO
1&% ° _ggﬂi/\ﬂ"’—_
B - A2\ [ 3T IH B R AD B
RET—BRED  EAEMIE
IR R EAE T HARE -

oHE
P R

N

/

A B
¢ 4F o

N

iy i
o S
s bR | P
B o B
R

AL
/N

Ry

75 E R xﬁﬁhssooo &
(% 5 3,800,000 % & & A%)
# Z= 100,000,000 & TT(5D A
1,000,000,0000% & 3@ %) °

O

BEARATERHMBE —RE
R-ZZEZNFA+N\HE
BRNEEAZR BBEER
1% 18 B 7 30,000,000 & JT
(48 & B A R ¥ 26,446,000
TBEERAN AN - R=ZF
TANFLtAABBRARRZ
TTAFNATNBHEER
2 T (B 3 17 299,999,996 i%
f% E{E0.10%8 7T M) &~ 1 A f%

1/'\ ®



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

)

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each were issued
at a price of HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The proceeds
of HKD10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,814,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD156,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,500,000), before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account.

On 31 July 2009, the sole underwriter
of the share offer exercised the over-
allocation option for the issuance of
15,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10
each at HKD1.66 per share. The
proceeds of HKD1,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,322,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000), before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account.

(c) Reserves

(i)

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
then sole shareholder of the Company
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the
Company were issued at par value on
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the
share premium account.

23 EX-REERRE#E)
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8 & % 77 100,000,000 A% &
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R # 137,500,000 7T) & 5 A
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MR IR E - EEAR1.6678
JT R (B #5277 15,000,000 % &
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HE RGO EEFTSEHIE
1,500,000 7T (FHE R AR
1,322,0007T ) BE5F AR R &)
A - 2 T ARMBRRHD BT
£ A #) BT 1§ 778 23,400,000/%8
7T (B & K A R #20,629,000
TTIEFF ARG HER -

KR GEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

0]

Share premium (Continued)

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company
were issued at HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The excess of
the proceeds totalling HKD156,000,000
(equivalent to RMB137,500,000) over
the nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued, before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

An  additional 15,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company
were issued at HKD1.66 per share on 31
July 2009 pursuant to the over-allocation
option. The excess of the proceeds
totalling HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000) over the nominal value
of the total number of ordinary shares
issued, before the share issue expenses,
were credited to the share premium
account of the Company.

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)
(ij) Capital reserve

(iii)

(a)

Capital reserve as at 1 January
2009 represented the aggregate
of paid-in capital of the companies
comprising the Group, after
elimination  of investment in
subsidiaries.

During the vyear ended 31
December 2009, the Group
acquired the remaining 47%
equity interest in De-Neng Power
Plant from the non-controlling
shareholders at an aggregate
consideration of RMB95,564,000.
The difference between the total
amount of consideration paid and
the total carrying value of non-
controlling  interests acquired
was recognised directly in
capital reserve and attributable
to the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Capital  contribution in 2009
represents a contribution
by Amber International of a
dividend receivable from De-
Neng Power Plant, amounting to
RMB21,385,000, to the Company
on 11 June 2009.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arising from the
Reorganisation represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to the Reorganisation over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)
(iv) Contributed surplus

(v)

Contributed  surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

PRC statutory reserve

Statutory  surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the  Group
which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous vyears’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in
proportion to the existing equity interests
of investors, provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BEXR - REERRE#)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends d B2
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAEMNEAAERIFEA
of the Company attributable to the KR E
year

2010 2009
=Lt £ —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T N R

Interim dividend declared and R 2 & Ik &K {1 5

paid during the year FREA R B 28,188
Final dividend proposed after 4 A Hi12 0 &2 3

the reporting date of R EARE B 5 8%0.035 7T

HKDO.03 per share —EE N F

(2009: HKDO.017 per share) & J§0.017%& 1) 6,206
Pursuant to a resolution passed at BEZZZTALFSA+NAHB
the board of directors’ meeting on EZEEIRBORER
18 June 2009, an interim dividend b NE/NIETI (=1 [ S /NI [ 1= e
of HKD31,976,700 (equivalent to ERTEZEXNAHRE
RMB28,188,420) were declared and 31,976,700 T (HHE R AR
fully paid by the Company to Amber #28,188,4207T) °
International, the parent company.
Pursuant to a resolution passed at the BREZZ—ZF=A=+X
board of directors’ meeting on 26 March HES=SggaBBmR
2010, dividends of HKD7,055,000 BER O RZZE-—ZTFR
(equivalent to RMB6,206,000) were Z+ZHERTEREX K
declared and fully paid on 22 June 2010. £.7,055,0008 T (HHERAR

#6,206,0007T) °

The final dividend proposed after the WwEABHERKRARSIL
reporting date has not been recognised ERBRERHBERARAE -

as a liability at the reporting date.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Dividends (Continued) d BRE#E)
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) BIfTEALAEREFFEAL—
of the Company attributable to the BEREERE REAHE

previous financial year, approved and RIR 1T
paid during the year

23 BX - fEERRE 4

2010 2009
Al —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T IRNSR

Final dividends in respect of  F—BIBEERIFR S -
the previous financial year, R F R E FR
approved and paid

during the year 40,348
Pursuant to a resolution passed at the RIEERE f TNEFR
board of directors’ meeting of De-Neng ATHEfE®g® .5% LBl
Power Plant on 10 May 2009, dividends ARBER EREREEREK

Iml}

& BB A R % 40,348,000
T BRAEAERE KK

of RMB40,348,000 were declared
to the then respective shareholders,

including dividends of RMB21,385,000
declared to Amber International and
RMB18,963,000 declared to the non-
controlling shareholders.

Dividends of RMB21,385,000 were then
contributed by Amber International to
the Company on 11 June 2009 and
dividends of RMB18,963,000 were fully
paid to the non-controlling shareholders.

B A R # 21,385,000 7T K& [A]
EEBRBEREREEARE
18,963,0007T °

FHEBEAKRE AR
21,385,000t A — T T AL F X
B+—BEAXRRQRAEEE
& ik B AR % 18,963,000
TTEBEM FIEBRBRRE -

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 B EREERAFEE
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

AEERBEEXFRAETEEEE R
BEE MEREERR -
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation and Huzhou
Electric Power Bureau are the customers of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2010.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Credit risk for power plants in the PRC power
industry is concentrated on a limited number of
power grid companies. However, the management,
having considered the strong financial background
and good credit worthiness of the power grid
companies, believe there is no significant credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other trade receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

24
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with any lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from

24

MEEREERAFEE)

RBESERE)
AEBEERDECH T ARBRAEL
FREMANBRATHAGBRENORBE
SEEINMEEN N EELELAEN
BAIARAEEMER -

AEBENBRREEHERNELAEHR
HESTFRAREBTEARRONBR
BREFAMREFEIERSIZESR
HEARERTARE  ENEHANE

major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

UTREBABNEQIMER - £
mEt A BN - BEXEF MY H RN

S8 .
A

The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting
agreements:

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-HA=+-BHLEE

Total Within
Carrying undiscounted one year or More than
amount cash flow on demand one year
AFRRE —FRx
REE REAE RERE BB—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
Interest-bearing borrowings 5T 8 f& & 486,700 532,742 261,534 271,208
Trade and other payables B8 5 K
H fth 3R 221,598 221,598 221,598 -
Long-term payables AN 22,298 30,803 - 30,803

730,596

785,143 483,132 302,011
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

BREBEERQFEE)

RBEESERE)

Year ended 31 December 2009

BE_TTAE+-A=+ HIEE

Total Within
Carrying undiscounted one year or More than
amount cash flow on demand one year
AMBREE —FAK
FREE mMERE R E R Him—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFTR ARBTRT AER%® T
Interest-bearing borrowings T B & & 580,000 633,816 259,566 374,250
Trade and other payables & & 5 & & 318 119,306 119,306 119,306 =
Long-term payables R FRIE 25,744 36,782 — 36,782
725,050 789,904 378,872 411,032
Market rate risk ™% R = & ks
(a) Interest risk (a) FIEE

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits and interest-bearing borrowings
are the major types of the Group’s financial
instruments subject to interest rate risk. Cash
and cash equivalents are with fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.001% to 1.17% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: 0.10% to 1.71% per annum). Pledged
bank deposits are placed to satisfy conditions
for issuance of commercial bills and bank
facilities granted to the Group, with fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.36% to 2.50%
per annum for the year ended 31 December
2010 (2009: 1.98% to 4.14% per annum).

AEEFEMNERRANEBRITA
FTERRERERALESEY  BE
HIRTTHERRFEEE - BHE_Z
—ZTF+_A=Z+—HILFE R
CRASEBYHEEFEMEN
F0.001%E117T%(ZEZE N F -
0.10%E1.71%) - B WIFFEITFER
EARARTEXEBRASEFRFN
BRITEENGEMSE  BEZZT
—EFE+ A=+ HILFENE
FEFENF0.36%E2.50% (=
THE 1.98%F4.14%) °
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 MBREKBEERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
Market rate risk (Continued) nEBESRRE)
(a) Interest risk (Continued) (a) FIZEREEE)
The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings as at AEBR -_ZE—ZFTF+_A=+—
31 December 2010 are set as below: BRirBEEE#HIMT :

2010 2009
=t 28 —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
INL-BP A AR¥ T

Fixed rate borrowings EEEE 130,000 130,000
Variable rate borrowings ZEEBE 356,700 450,000
486,700 580,000
Sensitivity analysis BB DT
As at 31 December 2010, it is estimated RZE-—ZFEF+ZHA=+—8"
that a general increase/decrease of 100 et Al =& EH T #H100
basis points in interest rates, with all EER mMAABEEMESHEFTT
other variables held constant, would have fé AR R EFERRIBRELE N &
decreased/increased the Group’s net profit mARZBERL EMHARE
after tax for the year and consolidated equity 3,937,000 (ZZEZTNF : AR
by approximately RMB3,937,000 (2009: 4,302,0007T) °
RMB4,302,000).
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the EXBRERESNBESR - BERE R
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit HOFMEENEYRREHNTERN
after tax and consolidated equity that would SEMBRREAHSAESEEY
arise assuming that the change in interest RenENERIEAMERZESIENT
rates had occurred at the reporting date TR AEERBREBREMNRES
and had been applied to re-measure those MRS E HASERKRTE
floating rate non-derivative instruments held )J%T'lﬂ&?Eéﬁéf?&ﬂ’]%%ﬁﬁﬁi'ﬁu
by the Group which expose the Group to EEHEFNEHINEFERLE -
cash flow interest rate risk at the reporting T E A E’J%ﬁ,\_g‘gﬂﬁﬁﬂ
date. The impact on the Group’s profit after E—H o

tax and consolidated equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Market rate risk (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through
the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates
of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of
China that are determined largely by supply
and demand. Changes in exchange rate affect
the RMB value of sales proceeds of products
that are denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the reporting date to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they

BREBEERQFEE)

REBESEMRE)

(b) S ¥R fE
ARBTA BHLBRINE - FFE
FRARENINER Y BERBF
BARBITREMEREESTINE
MEEETT - INERXZERAFREA
RBPTARNER  MZSEXRE
BREKETE - EXFABRESFEN
INEHEME RESEREARKE
'TE o

TRFAJASER RS B HE A
BRI RE BT EME RS
EXBEMELANEERAR -

relate.
2010 2009
=L BN TN —zThs
USD’000 USD’000
FEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeFEYD — 39
Trade and other payables ENE S REMNKIE (235) (175)
Gross balance sheet exposure B E BB R F AR &A% (235) (136)

The Group is not subject to currency risk on
the forecasted transactions as the Group
does not hedge its foreign currency risk.

B N5 B 4 SR SN SRR - B
AEERHETHRZALEEER

By o
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 BEREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Market rate risk (Continued) nEBESRRE)
(b) SHEEEE (&)

ATRERFERANERER :

(b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following significant exchange rates
applied during the year:

2009

—_TENEF

USD ETT 6.8282
Sensitivity analysis R E 2T

A 5 percent strengthening of the RMB against
the following currency at 31 December would
have increased profit or loss before tax by
the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

R+ZA=+—8 AR¥Z Tt
B THES%E B B Al i A 3B
BRTIIZEIENM - ZoMIHRK
MrEEMEHFRIRAMER) E/FT
o NMRANELER_TTNF
FIERME—B -

2010 2009

S L] —==h%
RMB’000 RMB’000
LSRN \RETT

Effect on profit or loss before tax ¥f & £ 5l % Ml sk BB A 52 &

UshD e

46

A 5 percent weakening of the RMB against
the above currency at 31 December would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the

BRFARMEBTE - AI+= A
St—RAR®N ERREEDE
5% 1 2 I 3 5 18 i b it B

above currency to the amounts shown above, Ao

on the basis that all other variables remain

constant.
Fair value AT E
The carrying amounts of significant financial assets RZE—ZFTF+A=+—H ' EX=%
and liabilities approximate their respective fair MEENABENREESHEALAFEME

F(ZETNFMERA) °

values as at 31 December 2010 (same for 2009).
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher equity shareholders’ return that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total debt (including all interest-
bearing borrowings as well as long-term payables,
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt. The Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2010 is as
follows:

24 BRERBEERQFEME

EXEH
AEEEREANTERNERNRER
SEAKERE  REGFAEAFRE
BRREMBERFRANEG - WIRF&E
MEAREBEREEREAKAE -

AREEEETE R LERERNRE
REOERBRSEETEEMESFHEA
[l 3R ISR E AR ES RREMTT
o WHREERREEAREARRRE -

$§‘E%lJJﬂE1f§$ttT(EM$IEE‘%‘§E
BUNBEABBR)EEEARRE - BR
%ELA1EI§%@§E(’E%,mAﬁ?fﬁ%ﬁkﬂi’%ﬁﬁ
SIE) P A ET BB B MR IR 3R R
RehkBReFEYFE  -BEXEBERE
EHMBRRAKRMEARREERFE A
EEERIMERFR AEEXRSES
HEHRERAEARNORE - #1TH
BARRREBEARHEEERDE
Ig o

Gearing ratio

BIEEAL X

T&E#F —_F-—FF+-_A=1+—HK
BEAARLE

2010 2009

Al —TTF

40.43% 47.70%
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25 COMMITMENTS

()  Capital commitments in respect of purchase
of property, plant and equipment outstanding
at the year end but not provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

25 EIE

() MEBFRETER RN BR
XEBERENNBEDE  BE

Authorised but not contracted for B 1% # {8 7k 5T 49

Contracted for B 5] 4)

REBERAENT ¢
2010 2009
SRl TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T N R
83,551 91,199

3,783 =

(i)  Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were
payable as follows:

(i) BBEAA]HEELCEHEERAR T E

Less than 1 year
Over 1 year but less than 5 years

|\

i
|

B

i

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the vyear ended 31 December 2010,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions. The
following is a summary of the principal related party
transactions carried out by the Group with the
below related parties for the year.

Name of party
BELER

MM EemT :
2010 2009
=t P YW _—TTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T BN S
1,124 647
164 448
1,288 1,095

26 BEIRS

BHE-_ZT—THE+_A=+—HI=F

B rBTIIALZRGRREETR
o ATAAEBEETIEESTNER
MEBMETRHHE °

Relationship
RES

Amber International
¥ 30 B R
Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang Finance”)

BRMBAERRR([&EREE])

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A

Parent company of the Company
RRAHE R F]
Fellow subsidiary

EEN =P
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Significant related party transactions
and balances with related parties

Particulars of significant transactions between
the Group and the above related parties
during the year ended 31 December 2010 is
as follows:

26 BELIXH (#)

(a) RRAELFETHEARBELIRS

AEEEFABEETRBEE_T—
TFET_A=T—BHLEFEMNEK

RPFHEBEWT -

2010
—E-2F
RMB’000
ARE T
Related party loan ENBESERFE
interest charged — RE
by — Non-recurring
Wanxiang Finance & [ B 15
Expense paid on RREAEEXF2EX
behalf of the — EEE
Group by — Non-recurring
Amber International ¥k 39 B R

There were no balances arising from the
above transactions as at 31 December 2010
(2009: Nil).

Key management personnel
remuneration

BE-T-TEt-A=t-8
RS MELES (TR

FE)

2009
—ETNF
RMB’000
ARET T

2,165

5,390

(b) FEEBAENME

2010
—g-%f
RMB’000
AREF T

Short-term employee benefits D HiR B R A
Post-employment benefits Bt 58 12 12 A

3,188
117

3,305

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 5(ii)).

MemBEe st ATETRAI(RH

FE5(ii) ©
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2009
—EENF
RMB’000
AREFT

2,099
88

2,187
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27 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 271 HEHREE
After the reporting date, the directors proposed a HEBBE EERN_FT——F=A
final dividend on 25 March 2011. Further details are “t+HRHEEBRRERPRE - LB
disclosed in note 23(d). B FE23(d)H E -

28 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 28 BEENRAKERADET
COMPANIES
As at 31 December 2010, the directors of the KRB EER —ZEF+ A

Company consider the immediate and ultimate
holding companies of the Company to be Amber
International and GDZ International Limited,
respectively, both of which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

= — Bl K T%E%&Eﬁf\“? /N
Bl Bl AIRIABEER GDZ International
Limited (R EBE LRSS TMAL) -
ZERNRTERELAHANMERE -

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE-_F—ZEF+-A=+—HL
NEW STANDARDS AND $Faﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ$$xﬁﬂﬁfl HIRE i
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ST EARZRENETE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010
Up to the date of issue of these financial HEZZVBER&ANEEH  BRE
statements, the IASB has issued a number of EHZEBeDBHEE T — iﬁi—i—_

amendments and Interpretations and one new
standard which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following:

A=t HLFERREREREYE
BRERARAZZHETREERAR
—IEFRI LR B

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUTHHH 2%
BEmNEstEEX

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation

— Classification of rights issues

1 February 2010

B % & 5t 42 Rl 5 3257 ERIE: 2 —H"HERIR —_Z-TF_H—H
(& FJ )
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting 1 July 2010
Standards — Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters
ERSBREENFEIR BARMERMEREEN —aRRKERTELR —Z-ZTF+HA—H

(BFTAK) B EREENETRBREZERBR
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29

NEW STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET

@:I:—?

Z2FE+_A=1+—Hi

FECEME S REMAPIERT - #

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2010 (Continued)

AIERRERENAESE @)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUTHESZ#%
BRNETHAMER
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities 1 July 2010
with equity instruments
BEREMBERERBEZEGRBEI0N IR TASESREE — T+ HA—H

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

BIFR B AR (=
i

F-FF)2

Amendments to IFRIC 14, IAS 19

B EhERERaanE

£14% R DI @5 ER E10%
(#37)

Revised IAS 24
BR 2 E R FE2458 (K EBET)

Amendments to IFRS 1

BIRR B F5 3R 5 RSB 15R (BT &)

Amendments to IFRS 7

BIfR A S ERIET

EASCHIRY)

The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum
funding requirements and their interaction—
Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement

RERMEERTE HEEEEXK
HEBAR —REEEERZEAMNK

Related party disclosures

BELTRE

First-time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates for first-time
adopters

BARMBERMBERER —BRESBRE
Sk &R M E 2 EE B H

Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Transfer of financial assets

ERMITE: BE—BRemEE

1 July 2010 or

1 January 2011
“E-TFLtH-H%
—T——%—-H—H

1 January 2011

~g——%-A-A

1 January 2011

—E——F—
1 July 2011
—T——%+H—H
1 July 2011
—E——%+tH—H
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE-ZE—-FEF+-A=+—HLt
NEW STANDARDS AND FECHEMEEREMMWIERT
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET TERRZREN IR E (&)

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUTEHSRZ2%
BmmE EEX
Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of 1 January 2012
underlying of financial assets
Bl & st ERIFE 125 (BRI AK) PREH —BEHIE  BROBBEcREE —EZ-—-_%—-H—H
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010) 1 January 2013
Basis for conclusions on IFRS 9 (2010)
Implementation guidance on IFRS 9 (2010)
B % B 75 R 5 2 B S8 9% ERIA(ZZE—ZF) —Z—=%—-H—H
BB BREENEIR(ZE-—FF)2
iEam A
BB BRELENEIR(ZTE-—ZTF)2
ViR L]
The Group is in the process of making an NEB I FETHSETERE 5 XE
assessment of what the impact of these FAEENEE BEBAL A&
amendments is expected to be in the period of REERALISEBEISHAEFNHLS
initial application. So far it has concluded that the EENTBRIRBEATE -

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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